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Our Vision

To be a pre-eminent service provider offering a uniquely
integrated and customized corporate consultancy solutions
to mid-size listed companies and private companies in the
Greater China.



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM s
publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange.
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed
issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this
document, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this document.

This document, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of B M
Intelligence International Limited collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to B M Intelligence
International Limited. The Directors having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i)
the information contained in this document is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
document misleading; and (iii) all opinions expressed in this document
have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are
founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER®E

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”)
of B M Intelligence International Limited (“BM Intelligence” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am
pleased to present our annual report for the year ended 30th April,
2006.

The fiscal year 2006 was a fruitful year for the Group. Benefited from
the upswing in economy, demand for professional corporate services
has been surging since last year. Notable growth in the two of the
Group's core segments: corporate services and funds and wealth
management, contributes to a 106% increase in the Group’s turnover
from approximately HK$20,571,000 in 2005 to HK$42,427,000 in
2006. This coupled with the cost control initiatives taken by the
management, led the Group’s operating profit to turnaround for the
year ended 30th April, 2006. The net profit attributable to the equity
holders/shareholders recorded by the Group for the year under review
is approximately HK$1,826,000 (2005: loss of approximately
HK$3,478,000).

Leveraging on the economic upswing and the positive momentum
built during our years of efforts and dedications, the Group has
continued its united vision to be a pre-eminent service provider
offering uniquely integrated and customised corporate consultancy
solutions to mid-size listed companies and private companies as well
as high net worth individuals in the Greater China Region and acting
as their one-stop solution provider to grow their businesses.

The Group, as always, recognised the importance of professionalism
and know-how exhibited by our staff, and that quality staff are the
most valuable asset for a professional services provider. During the
year under review, the Group recruited more talents and dedicated a
lot of efforts in continuous personal development and training for all
staff and team-building to enhance professionalism and efficient
internal communications. The Board believes that through the
provision of best-quality working environment, the Group could
attract, develop and retain talents; and ultimately bringing value to
our clients by meeting their needs in all aspects.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER®E

Looking forward, the Board believes that with the upswing in the
economy and capital market in Hong Kong and in the Greater China
Region, not only the number of PRC companies which plan to be
listed in Hong Kong, but also the enterprises which set their eyes on
expanding their business in the PRC shall be largely increased.
Meanwhile, the Group has a well-established network in the PRC, a
healthy and stable cashflow and a team of elite experts which are
well-equipped for the Group’s future development. Leveraging these
favourable external and internal environments, the Board is confident
that the growth in demand for our professional corporate consulting
services and the future business growth are optimistic.

We believe the fiscal year 2006 only marked the beginning of the
Group’s complete turnaround. The Group is committed to forging
ahead with its business endeavors and boosting its financial
performance. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to the management and staff for
their dedication and invaluable effort. We would also like to thank our
shareholders, investors, and clients for their continuing support and
confidence in us.

LO Wah Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th July 2006
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR &R

The Group has over the years grown from a small team specialising in
business, accounting and corporate development advisory services to
today’s array of profession divisions of service arms including company
secretarial, financial translation, asset valuation, and funds and wealth
management services, to meet with the increasing demand from both
our corporate and individual customers. We recorded an encouraging
growth of overall business performance for the year ended 30th April,
2006.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Corporate Services

The Group, renowned for its diversified scope of corporate services in
the market, has continued to focus its efforts in expanding and
enhancing our integrated and comprehensive services provided to our
clients. During the year under review, the corporate services segment
recorded a 74% increase in turnover to approximately
HK$21,640,000 (2005: HK$12,440,000).

Financial Translation Services

Driven by the robust demand for financial translation services required
by the IPO market, BMI Professional Translation Services Limited (“BMI
Translation”), the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary, posted an
impressive earnings for the year under review, making a good income
contribution to the Group.

To meet the ever diversified needs of the market, we endeavoured to
further recruit and train competent translators who have the talents,
skills, and abilities to provide quality translation services. Coupled with
the professionalism and dedication of the existing team members,
BMI Translation succeeded in widening its client base to the
commercial sector and various government departments as well.

Looking forward, we will deploy more resources to enhance our
service quality, in a bid to further strengthen its position and extend
its market penetration.

Company Secretarial Services

BMI Corporate Services Limited (“BMI Corporate Services”), the
Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, one of the leading professional
services providers in Hong Kong, provides integrated and
comprehensive company secretarial services to both listed and private
companies. During the year under review, the division recorded a
steady growth in both its turnover and profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmE D

Nowadays, corporate governance is widely recognised as the
foundation to long-term strategic sustainability. BMI Corporate
Services has completed several corporate governance assessments for
a number of its clients. Through these assessments, the corporate
governance awareness and standards of its client were raised and
shall expected to transform into benefits of its clients in the long run.
BMI Corporate Services shall continue to deliver its expertise company
secretarial support as well as corporate governance assessment to
meet with its clients’ needs.

IBC Corporate Services Limited (“IBC Corporate Services”), the
Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary providing offshore company
formation and agency services has continued to grow to become a
professional trusted offshore company services provider. During the
period under review, IBC Corporate Services endeavoured to improve
its product quality and sales skills. Leveraged on the concerted efforts
of the team, IBC Corporate Services proved to be a trusted agency
locally for serving professional intermediaries such as law firms,
accounting firms and business consulting firms. Looking forward, IBC
Corporate Services is planning to continue its development in the PRC
market, we are confident to become a well-known trusted offshore
company provider in Hong Kong and PRC in future.

The division’s scope of service was further extended through the
totalling 7% acquisition in the capital of Union Services and Registrars
Inc. (“Union Registrars”). Union Registrars is one of the premier share
registration service provider in Hong Kong, whose clientele comprises
of companies listed on the Stock Exchange. The Directors believes that
the acquisition will further enhance its one-stop integrated and
comprehensive service to our clients.

The synergies among BMI Corporate Services, IBC Corporate Services
and Union Registrars shall continue to benefit the division and the
Group as a whole, strengthening the positive momentum for further
expansion and growth.

Assets Valuation Services

BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI Appraisals”), our 45% owned
associated company, is an all-rounded valuation consulting firm
providing worldwide professional services covering basically real estate
valuations, plant & machinery valuations, business valuations, brand
name & goodwill valuations and equity capital valuations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR &R

During the year under review, BMI Appraisals has successfully
completed 1 listing valuation project in Hong Kong, 2 listing valuation
projects in Singapore, over 10 valuation projects for public
documentation purposes in Hong Kong and 1 valuation project for
public documentation purpose in Australia.

BMI Appraisals has been actively involved in valuations for listing,
merger and acquisition, corporate financing, accounting and taxation
matters. Its professional team has been striving to source business
potential in the PRC market, the Asia-Pacific regions and other
overseas markets. With its solid foundation and the endeavors of its
team, the Board believes that BMI Appraisals will soon become a well-
known appraisal firm.

Business, Accounting and Corporate Development Advisory Services

The provision of business, accounting and corporate development
advisory services is provided through BMI Consultants Limited, BMI
Consultant (Shenzhen) Limited and BMI Corporate Advisory
(Shanghai) Limited whose importance to the Group’s businesses has
continued to diminish. Nevertheless, the division’s turnover stood at
same level as compared with that of the last corresponding period.

Funds and Wealth Management

BMI Funds Management Limited (“BMI Funds”), the Group's wholly-
owned subsidiary, and BMI Wealth Management Limited (“BMI
Wealth"”), the Group’s 72% owned subsidiary, specialises in providing
wealth management services, provides an one stop comprehensive
range of financial products and insurance linked product offered by
the world’s leading banks, financial institutions and insurance
companies.

During the year under review, BMI Funds and BMI Wealth recorded a
progressive growth in its turnover and a significant market
penetration, building a strong foundation for a blooming business.
Under review to cope with the increasing demand for professional
services, more talents were recruited during the year. Meanwhile,
Adviser Trainee Program was launched successfully in 2005 to recruit
young talent from universities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR &R

Development of other markets in the Asia Pacific region, were devised
to elevate the market recognition of BMI Funds and BMI Wealth.
Vertically, it had successfully got the distribution right and was
appointed as the Investment Adviser of Marco Polo Pure China Fund
in the region of Hong Kong and Taiwan, leading to an up-streaming
development direction. Horizontally, General and Life Insurance
Department was developed for both personal and corporation clients
to expand the service spectrum, providing them with a total solution.

Further resources were invested for brand building and reputation
enhancement in the market. A number of marketing initiatives were
taken throughout the year: exhibitions in Baby Expo, Wedding Expo,
and Financial Expo, joint promotion with a well known beauty salon,
sponsorships for different City Junior Chamber’s activities such as
“City Super Training 2005” and “Innovative Entrepreneur Fair &
Forum”, “Metro Finance Investment Product Expo 2006" and series of
quarterly seminars in both Hong Kong and Shenzhen, etc, which
effectively enhanced our penetration in different market segments.

Looking forward, BMI Funds and BMI Wealth shall leverage the
platform built to progress to become a well-known wealth
management team in the Asia Pacific Region.

GROUP CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Shareholders’ Funds

The Group's total shareholders funds is approximately HK$18,031,000
which was increased compared to approximately HK$16,058,000 in
the previous year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 30th April, 2006, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$15,176,000. The current assets mainly comprised
trade receivables of approximately HK$7,835,000, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments of approximately HK$1,639,000, and bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$15,740,000. The Company
intends to finance the Group's future operations, capital expenditure
and other capital requirements with the existing bank balances
available. The current liabilities mainly comprised accrued charges and
other payables of approximately HK$10,261,000, obligations under
finance leases due within one year of approximately HK$33,000 and
provision for taxation of approximately HK$91,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR &R

Working Capital and Gearing Ratio

As at 30th April, 2006, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$25,927,000, while its current liabilities stood at approximately
HK$10,751,000. Other than the obligations under finance leases of
approximately HK$33,000, the Group did not have any outstanding
indebtedness as at 30th April, 2006, and its shareholders’ funds
amounted to approximately HK$18,031,000. In this respect, the
Group had a net cash position, its working capital ratio (current assets
to current liabilities) was 2.41 (2005: 6.66); and its gearing ratio (net
debt (i.e. interest bearing debt) to shareholders’ funds) was 0.002
(2005: 0.02) .

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENT

During the year under review, the Group made a significant strategic
investment in respect of an acquisition of a further 2.1% interest in
Union Registrars for a consideration of HK$144,000.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group had no material acquisitions/disposal of subsidiaries and
associated corporation during the year under review.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th April, 2006, the Group had 78 (2005: 53) employees
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China. As an equal opportunity
employer, the Group’s remuneration and bonus policies are
determined with reference to the performance and experience of
individual employees. The total amount of employee remuneration
(including that of the Directors and retirement benefits scheme
contributions) of the Group for the year was reviewed and approved
by the Board, which was approximately HK$11,766,000 (2005:
HK$8,074,000).

In addition, the Group may offer options to reward employees who
exhibit that they have offered significant contributions to the Group.
In order to enhance customer service standard, the Group not only
encourages employees to receive training and further education, but
also sponsors senior executives for higher education programs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR &R

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30th April, 2006, property, plant and equipment of the Group
with net book value of approximately HK$195,000 (2005:
HK$329,000) was held under finance leases.

DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors propose a resolution at the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company to seek approval from the shareholders of
the Company for acquisition of a property situated at Unit 05, 43rd
Floor, Golden Central Tower, Grossing of Fuhua Road & Jintian Road,
Fu Tian District, Shenzhen, PRC for an aggregate consideration of
approximately RMB5,532,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,371,000), details of the above has been announced on 11th
July, 2006.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors do not have any future plans
for material investment or capital assets in the near future.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs cost in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Directors consider the impact of foreign exchange
exposure of the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30th April, 2006, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEASEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wah Wai, aged 42, is the Chairman and an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lo is the co-founder of the Group and is
responsible for the Group’s sales and marketing activities. Prior to
founding the Group, he had more than eight years’ experience in
auditing and business consulting services in an international
accounting firm, two years of which were spent in the United States.
Mr. Lo holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a master’s degree in science
from New Jersey Institute of Technology, the United States. He is a
practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lo is independent non-executive directors of
Artfield Group Limited, China Investment Fund Company Limited and
Semtech International Holdings Limited, all the aforesaid companies
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is also the
Chairman of nomination and remuneration committees of the
Company.

Mr. WONG Wai Tung, aged 36, is the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in
January 2001. He is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the business of the Group, attends to formulation and successful
implementation of policies, and assumes full accountability to the
Board for all operations of the Group. Working with the executive
management team of each core business division, he ensures the
smooth operations and development of the Group. He maintains a
continuing dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors to keep
them fully informed of all major business developments and issues.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SO Kwok Wai, aged 43, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. So has over 19 years’ experience in
accounting and finance. He holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
master’s degree in management studies from the University of East
Asia. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He is
currently the financial controller of a private company in Hong Kong.
Mr. So joined the Group in April 2001. Mr. So is also the member of
audit, nomination and remuneration committees of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EE%Z&PM&&HE)QEF%

Mr. LEE Kwong Tong, aged 41, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lee has over 15 years’ experience in the
banking and finance industry. He holds a bachelor’s degree in science
and a master’s degree in business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and a master’s degree in accounting from
the University of Southern Queensland in Australia. He is also a
member of the CPA Australia. He is currently a director of a private
company involved in project investment. Mr. Lee joined the Group in
June 2001. Mr. Lee is also the member of audit, nomination and
remuneration committees of the Company.

Mr. LUI Tin Nang, aged 48, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Lui has obtained a bachelor degree in science
from the University of Leeds and a master degree in business
administration from the University of Bradford in United Kingdom. Mr.
Lui is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practicing) and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales, member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountant. He has years of experience in accounting, auditing,
taxation and corporate finance. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Vital BioTech Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lui joined the Group in
September 2004. Mr. Lui is also the member of audit, nomination and
remuneration committees of the Company.

Mr. LIU Ming Ming, aged 37, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the first branch of
the People’s University of China (3t = A R K2 — 5 1) in Beijing with
a Bachelor degree in 1991. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu had
more than 14 years’ experience in technology development in the
People’s Republic of China. He is also the General Manager of
Proactive Technology Development (Beijing) Limited and Beijing
Teletron Systems Integration Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary and associate of a company listed on the Stock Exchange
respectively. Mr. Liu joined the Group in December 2005. Mr. Liu is
also the member of audit, nomination and remuneration committees
of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Shing Wai, aged 35, joined the Group in March 2004. He
is responsible for the management of the funds and wealth
management advisory division of the Group. Mr. Chan has extensive
experience in financial planning and wealth management industry. He
is a registered technical representative in the Hong Kong
Confederation of Insurance Brokers. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor
degree in Applied Science from Hong Kong Baptist University and a
diploma in management studies from the Hong Kong Management
Association.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEASEN

Ms. CHAN Wing Fun, Joannau, aged 36, joined the Group in
February 2002. She is a director of BMI Appraisals, our 45% owned
associate. Ms. Chan is responsible for the business development and
project management of valuation services of BMI Appraisals. Ms.
Chan has extensive experience in appraisals and consultancy, as well
as real estate agency in the Asia Pacific Rim. She is a member of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice) and
a Licensed Estate Agent in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Land Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

Dr. CHENG Chak Ho, aged 36, is a director of BMI Appraisals. Dr.
Cheng is responsible for overall development of BMI Appraisals. He
has extensive experience in valuations of all kinds of properties, plants
and machinery, and businesses. Dr. Cheng has also been involved in
valuations of several major infrastructure projects in the Asia Pacific
Rim. He has experience in property agency, investment dealings and
property development. Among others, he is a senior member of the
Canadian Institute of Management, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and a member of American Society of
Mechanical Engineers. Dr. Cheng holds a Bachelor of Science in
Building from the City University of Hong Kong, a Master degree in
Urban Design from the University of Hong Kong, a Master of Science
in Engineering (Mechanical Engineering) and a Doctor of Philosophy in
Economics from the University of Brighton, USA.

Ms. SO Ming Yan Fiona, aged 30, joined the Group in December
2004, is the Director of BMI Translation. Ms. So is responsible for the
business development and overall management of the translation
department of the Group. She holds a Bachelor degree in Translation
and Chinese from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. So has
over 8 years of experience in the mass media and financial printing
industry. Prior to joining the Group, she has served several reputable
financial printing houses in Hong Kong.

Ms. WANG Jun, aged 33, is a director of our wholly-owned
subsidiary in Shenzhen, the PRC, BMI Consultants (Shenzhen) Limited
which specialises in the provision of business, accounting and
corporate development services. Ms. Wang has over 10 years of
experience in auditing, taxation and corporate advisory services
including manufacturing, trading and banking industries in the PRC.
She is a member of the China Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Wang holds a Bachelor degree in Accounting from
Nanjing University of Science & Technology, the PRC. She has
extensive experience in IPO and business consultancy services.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERBHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management are committed to maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance practices. The Group believes
that high standard of corporate governance provides a framework
and solid foundation for achieving, attracting and retaining the high
standard and quality of the Group’s management, promoting high
standards of sound internal control, accountability and transparency
to all shareholders and also meeting the expectations of the Group’s
various stakeholders.

Throughout the year ended 30th April, 2006, the Company has
complied with the board’s practices and procedures as set out in Rules
5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules and most of code provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practice as set out in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code"), with the deviation from
Code provision A.4.2 in respect of all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after their appointment. Relevant amendments
to the Articles of Association of the Company to comply with Code
provision A.4.2 will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is charged with the duty to put in place a proper corporate
governance structure of the Company. It is primarily responsible for
setting directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance
and managing risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are
currently 3 subcommittees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms
of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of
the senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BERAHE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition and Board Practices

The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible to the
shareholders for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
and its businesses by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
Details of the membership of the Board (including the Independent
Non-executive Directors) together with their roles and functions are
posted on the Company’s website and such information shall be
updated whenever there are changes.

As at 30th April, 2006, the Board of the Company comprises 6
directors (the “Directors”) including two executive directors (the
“Executive Directors”) namely Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Mr. Wong Wai
Tung; and four independent non-executive directors (the
“Independent Non-executive Directors”) namely Mr. So Kwok Wai,
Mr. Lee Kwong Tong, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Liu Ming Ming. There
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
amongst the Directors.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
The principle functions of the Board are to:

establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

o determine the broad policies, strategies and objectives of the
Group;

o approve annual budgets, major funding proposals, investment
and divestment proposals;

o oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy and integrity
of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting and
compliance;

o approve the nominations of directors by Nomination Committee
and appointment of management team and/or external auditors;

o ensure accurate, adequate and timely reporting to, and
communication with shareholders;
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o monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest of
management, board members and shareholders, including
misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party
transactions; and

o assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to Executive
Directors and senior management, while reserving certain key matters
for its approval. As at 30th April, 2006, more than one-third of the
Board is Independent Non-executive Directors so that there is a strong
element of independence in the Board to exercise independent
judgement. Moreover, all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise so that they are of sufficient caliber
and number for their views to carry weight. Thus, the Board considers
the current board size as adequate for its present operations.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the existing Directors are
considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group,
taking into account the scope and nature of its operations. The
Directors have a mix of core competencies in areas such as accounting
and finance, business and management, industry knowledge and
marketing strategies. The experience and qualifications of Directors
and senior management are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 12 to 14 of
this Annual Report.

Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties
as Executive Directors. Their functions include, but not limited to:

o participating in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts;

. taking the lead when potential conflicts of interests arise;

. serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees, if
invited; and
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o scrutinising the Group's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3
Independent Non-executive Directors and all of them have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Pursuant to the Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has received a written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors of their independence to the
Company. The Company considers that all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately quarterly
intervals and will be meet as necessary. During the year ended 30th
April, 2006, the Board held 11 meetings. The Directors can attend
meetings in persons or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Company's Articles of
Association. Notice of at least 14 days is given of a regular board
meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. The following
table shows the attendance of individual Directors of the Company at
the Board held during the year:
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Attendance/Number

Name of directors of Meetings held
EERR HE/RITEEHE
Executive Directors HITES
Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) EER (FE) 11/11
Wong Wai Tung (Chief Executive Officer) TER(TTHAZR) 11/11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ip Yu Chak Bz

(resigned on 31st October, 2005) (R=ZZFERAF+HA=+—HFMT) 0/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYKHTES
So Kwok Wai B2 6/11
Lee Kwong Tong THhE 4/11
Lui Tin Nang SN 5/11
Liu Ming Ming 2B 1R

(appointed on 19th December, 2005) (R-_ZFEZERAF+_HA+NHEZF) 0/3
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Board papers are circulated at least 3 days before the Board meetings
to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be
raised at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary attend all
regular Board meetings to advise on corporate governance and
statutory compliance when necessary. In addition, the Company has
maintained a procedure for Directors to seek independent
professional advice, in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense in discharging their duties to the Company. Moreover, the
Company Secretary prepares minutes and keeps records of matters
discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meeting. The Company
Secretary also keeps the minutes, which are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Appointment, Election and Re-election

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. It reviews the profiles of the candidates and
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
nomination and retirement of Directors.

According to the Company’s current Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting (“AGM"), provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years.
The directors to retire every year shall be those appointed by the
Board during the year and those who have been longest in office
since their last election or re-election. All Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM immediately following their appointment. All newly
appointed directors and all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
during the year shall not be taken into account in determining the
number of directors who are to retire by rotation at that AGM.

In order to comply with the Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, the
Company will propose to amend its Articles of Association at the
forthcoming AGM to stipulate that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election at the first general
meeting after their appointment.
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All Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into a service
contract for a twelve-month period. All Directors are subject to re-
election by shareholders at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least every three years on a rotation basis. None
of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the GEM Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director will be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company. Updates are provided to the Directors
when necessary to ensure the Group conducts its businesses.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities for the
Directors in relation to the quarterly and annual financial statements.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group position and prospects.

Accounting Period

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group uses appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards are followed.
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Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

Safequarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent or detect
fraud and other irregularities.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, its is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Insurance for Directors

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors as
the Board do not foresee any contingent liabilities against the Group.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman, Mr. Lo Wah Wai, and the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ"), Mr. Wong Wai Tung are segregated. This segregation
ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s and the CEO's
responsibilities which allows a balance of power between the Board
and the management of the Group, and ensures their independence
and accountability. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship between the Chairman and the CEO.
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Mr. Lo, as the Chairman of the Company, has overall responsibility for
providing leadership, vision and direction in the development of the
business of the Company. He ensures that:

o the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a
timely manner;

o the responsibilities for drawing up the agenda for each Board
meeting and, where appropriate, taking into account any
matters proposed by each Director for inclusion in the agenda
have been duly delegated to the Company Secretary;

o good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and encourages all Directors to make full and active
participation to the affairs of the Group; and

o the Board acts in the best interests of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman held meetings with
the Non-executive Directors without the presence of Executive
Directors at least once every quarter.

Mr. Wong, as the CEQ, is responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group, attends to formulation and successful
implementation of policies, and assumes full accountability to the
Board for all operations of the Group. Working with the executive
management team of each core business division, he ensures the
smooth operations and development of the Group. He maintains a
continuing dialogue with the Chairman and all Directors to keep them
fully informed of all major business developments and issues.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
Board procedures are followed and for ensuring that the Board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regarded to them when making
decisions. The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with the continuing obligations of the GEM
Listing Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures Ordinance
and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to the CG Code, the Company has set up a nomination
committee with a majority of the members thereof being independent
non-executive directors. The nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 22nd July, 2005 and comprises
a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
which schedules to meet at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. Lo
Wah Wai (the Chairman of the Company) and comprises four other
members, namely Mr. So Kwok Wai, Mr. Lee Kwong Tong, Mr. Lui Tin
Nang and Mr. Liu Ming Ming. All Nomination Committee members,
with the exception of Mr. Lo Wah Wai, are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business is two.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

o to make recommendations to the Board on all new
appointments or re-appointments of Directors, the
establishment of a succession plan for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the CEO and the composition of the Board;

o to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional Directors or to fill
vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;
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. to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the
contribution by each Director to the Board;

° to review on an annual basis the Board structure, size and
composition and the independent element of the Board;

o to develop the criteria for selection of Directors; and

o to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee will report to the Board
on its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting.
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During the year ended 30th April, 2006, 2 meetings of Nomination REEZE-ZTZXFMNA=1+HILFE & 24
Committee were held. The following table shows the attendance of ZE8&H*BITMAEHE - T%%WH$’&ETT
individual directors of the Company at the Nomination Committee RIZEEFALFIRLEZES 2B
held during the year:

Attendance/Number
Name of Nomination Committee Members of Meetings held
REZEGHERE HEBITEEEE
Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) EER (F/F) 2/2
So Kwok Wai #HER 22
Lee Kwong Tong THhE 2/2
Lui Tin Nang =N 2/2
Liu Ming Ming 287 87 0/0

(appointed on 19th December, 2005)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the CG Code, the Company has set up a remuneration
committee with a majority of the members thereof being Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The committee
("Remuneration Committee”) has been established on 22nd July,
2005 and comprises a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, which schedules to meet at least once a
year. It is chaired by Mr. Lo Wah Wai (the Chairman of the Company)
and comprises four other members, namely Mr. So Kwok Wai, Mr. Lee
Kwong Tong, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Liu Ming Ming. All
Remuneration Committee members, with the exception of Mr. Lo
Wah Wai, are Independent Non-executive Directors. The quorum
necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

o to assist the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest caliber and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across the
Company’s substantial, diverse and international business
operations;

o to recommend a fair and transparent framework of executive
remuneration for the Board and senior management of the
Company, including share option schemes, based on the skill,
knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs and by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as
well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions;

o to review and determine specific remuneration packages for
each Executive Director and senior management by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time
to time; and

o to administer the performance bonus scheme and the share
option scheme for the employees of the Company.

No Directors can determine their own remuneration package. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee will report to the Board on
its proceedings and recommendations after each meeting. The
recommended remuneration packages are subject to approval by the
Board.
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The remuneration package of Directors and senior management
includes the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

20

Basic salary

The basic salary (inclusive of statutory employer contributions to
Provident Fund) for each Executive Directors/senior management
is recommended by Remuneration Committee, taking into
account the performance of the individual, the inflation price
index and information from independent sources on the rates of
salary for similar jobs in a selected group of comparable
organisations.

Fees

Fees paid/payable to Executive Directors are determined by the
Board after considering the corporate and individual's relative
performance against the comparable organisations. The fees
paid/payable to Non-Executive Directors takes into account
factors such as effort and time spent, and responsibilities of
these Directors.

Bonus scheme

The Group operates a bonus scheme for all employees, including
the Executive Directors and senior management. The criteria for
the scheme is the level of profit achieved from certain aspects of
the Group’s business activities against targets, together with an
assessment of corporate and individual’s performance during the
year. Bonuses payable to the Executive Directors/senior
management are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board to ensure alignment of their interests
with those of shareholders of the Company.

Benefits in kind

Other customary benefits (such as private medical cover) are
made available as appropriate.
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(e) Service contract

The notice period for the termination of Executive Directors’
service contracts by either parties is six months.

(f) Directors’ share options

The Group operates a share option scheme for senior
management, employees and external consultants. The terms of
the scheme and the movement in Directors’ share options
during the financial year ended 30th April, 2006 are set out on
pages 41 of Directors’ Report and in note 30 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by the
Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. The amounts paid to
each Director of the Company for the year ended 30th April, 2006 are
set out in Note 8 to the financial statement.

During the year ended 30th April, 2006, 2 meetings of Remuneration
Committee were held. The following table shows the attendance of
individual directors of the Company at the Remuneration Committee
held during the year:

Name of Remuneration Committee Members
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REBEE_FTTNFOA=THILFE - ZH
ZESHABITMAREE - TREIIARAE
NEEFALEFHEZES ZIBN -

Attendance/Number
of Meetings held

YHEEERERE HEBITEEEE

Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) BEER (FE) 2/2

So Kwok Wai #HER 22

Lee Kwong Tong THhE 2/2

Lui Tin Nang =N 2/2

Liu Ming Ming 287 87 0/0
(appointed on 19th December, 2005) (RZFEERAFFT_ATNAEZE)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The GEM Listing Rules require every listed company to establish an
audit committee comprising at least three members who must be
non-executive directors only, and the majority thereof must be
independent non-executive directors, at least one of whom must have
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company established an audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 4th July, 2001 with reference
to “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit Committee” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee were revised on 1st July, 2005 in terms substantially
the same as the provisions set out in the CG Code. The revised terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website.

The major duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor;

. to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;

o to review and monitor external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendation of any measures for improvements to be
taken;

o to review the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:

(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
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(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting principles and standards; and

(vi) compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and ensure that the management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response;

to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and
monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised; and

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.
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The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any
matter under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain
independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
assistance from the management and reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly. At least once annually, the Audit
Committee will meet the external auditors without the presence of
the management.

The Audit Committee currently comprises the four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr. So Kwok Wai, Mr. Lee
Kwong Tong, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Liu Ming Ming. The Group’s
quarterly results for the three months ended 31st July, 2005, 31st
October, 2005, 31st January, 2006 and audited financial statements
for the year ended 30th April, 2006 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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During the year ended 30th April, 2006, 4 meetings of Audit REZE=-ZTZTXFNA=THILFE  B%
Committee were held. The following table shows the attendance of ZE&HBITMAEE - T%%W'JZFQETT
individual directors of the Company at the Audit Committee held IEEFAREZZES2HFRIE)
during the year:

Attendance/Number
Name of Audit Committee Members of Meetings held
EREEENER SR HEBITEREE
So Kwok Wai # B2 3/4
Lee Kwong Tong THhE 3/4
Lui Tin Nang SN 3/4
Liu Ming Ming 2B 1R 0/1

(appointed on 19th December, 2005) (RZFEERAFEFT AT NAEZE)

Full minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the Company BRZEENE€ZTHHATWMERT - &
Secretary. Draft and finalised minutes of the Audit Committee #ZZE@r@#THRVBLEER ERAE
meetings are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for %ﬁ?ﬁ?&ﬂ’]é %EH'EJI*J MEZEZEGMEK
their comment and records respectively, in both cases within E{&EH WO RIEHIBHEER MiEék -

reasonable time after the conclusion of the meetings.
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Auditors Remuneration

An amount of HK$200,000 (2005: HK$188,000) was charged to the
Group's for the year ended 30th April, 2006 for the auditing services
to Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants (“Grant Thornton”),
the existing auditors who was appointed on 15th June, 2005. There is
no non-audit service assignment provided by Grant Thornton during
the year.

During the year under review, no fees were payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who resigned on 15th June, 2005, in respect of any
audit or non-audit services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND GROUP RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with limits
of authority, is designed to help the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted reviews of
the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control. The Board,
through the review of the Audit Committee and based on the
discussions with the external auditors, is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the Code Provisions on internal controls during
the year under review as set forth in the CG Code except that an
internal audit function has not been set up in the internal control
system of the Group.
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Organisational Structure and Reporting System

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures,
lines of responsibility and delegated authority has been established. A
comprehensive monthly management reporting is in place. The
Division/Department Heads of each core business division is
accountable for the conduct and performance of each business in the
division within the agreed strategies, which are set by themselves and
the Board together, and report directly to the Board.

Authority and Control

The relevant Executive Directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities with regard to key
corporate strategy and policy and contractual commitments.

Budgetary Control and Financial Reporting

A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in place
providing financial and operational performance indicators to the
senior management, and the relevant financial information for
reporting and disclosure purpose.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the management
of individual core businesses and subject to review and approval by
the Executive Directors as part of the Group’s three-year corporate
planning cycle. Budgets are reforecast on a half yearly basis and
reviewed for differences to the budget and approval. When setting
budgets and forecasts, senior management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of significant
business risks.

The Executive Directors review monthly management reports on the
financial results and key operating statistics of each business and hold
monthly meetings with the senior management of business operations
to review these reports, business performance against budgets,
forecasts, significant business risk sensitivities and strategies. In
addition, each month the finance manager of the Group attend
meetings with the senior management and the Executive Directors to
review monthly performance and to address accounting and finance
related matters.
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Cash Management System and Capital Expenditures System

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiary operations. A treasury report is distributed weekly to report
on the Group’s cash and liquid investments, and movements thereof.

The Executive Directors have established guidelines and procedures
for the approval and control of expenditures. Operating expenditures
are subject to overall budget control and are controlled within each
business with approval levels for such expenditures being set by
reference to each Executive’s and officer’s level of responsibility.
Capital expenditures are subject to overall control within the annual
budget review and approval process and, more specific control and
approval prior to commitment by the Executive Directors for material
expenditures within the approved budget, and also unbudgeted
expenditures. Quarterly reports are reviewed comparing actual against
budgeted and approved expenditures.

CODES AND POLICIES
Securities Dealing Code

The Company’'s Employee Handbook has set out written guidelines
(the “Guidelines for Dealing Shares”) on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the required standard of dealings in the Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of Dealings”) as its code
of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors and relevant
employees including any employee of the Company or a director or
employee of a subsidiary of holding company of the Company who,
because of such office or employment, is likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or
its shares. Especially, Directors and the relevant employees are
required to be prohibit from dealing in Shares during the black-out
period. Any breach of the Guidelines for Dealing Shares would be
regarded as a very serious disciplinary matter. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company has confirmed that the Directors
have fully complied with the required standards set out in both the
Guidelines for Dealing Shares and the Standard of Dealings
throughout the year ended 30th April, 2006.
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Related Party Transactions Policy

During the year, the Company has formulated a policy on the review
and approval of the related party transactions. Related party
transactions are periodically reviewed and approved by the Audit
Committee.

Code of Ethics

During the year, the Company adopted a Code of Ethics that applies
to the Company’s principal executive officer and senior financial
officers in the conduct and practice of financial management and lays
down the key principles that they shall follow and advocate, which
include honest and ethical conduct; full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable disclosure; compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
and accounting standards and regulations; prompt internal reporting;
and accountability for adherence to the code. The Code of Ethics is
also intended to promote the well-being of the all employees, officers
and Directors in the workplace, and advocate high standards of
professional conduct and work performance.

Whistleblower Policy

During the year, a whistleblower policy was established to facilitate
the reporting of improper activities relating to fraud against
shareholders, or questionable accounting, internal accounting controls
or auditing matters. Any whistleblower complaints can be reported
directly to the Audit Committee Chairman or a member of the Audit
Committee on a confidential and anonymous basis. The Audit
Committee will investigate each matter so reported and take
corrective and disciplinary actions, if appropriate.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels to
account to shareholders and investors for the performance of the
Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the Company to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated and key
information of the Group available on the website of the Company;
(iv) the Company’s website offering communication channel between
the Company and its shareholders and investors; (v) the appointment
of the Investor Relation Officer; and (vi) the Company’s share
registrars in Hong Kong serving the shareholders in respect of all
share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with high
standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board is
committed to provide clear, detailed, timely manner and on a regular
basis information of the Group to shareholders through the
publication of quarterly and annual reports and/or dispatching
circular, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its shareholders’ views
and inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns. The Company has
appointed Mr. Chan Shing Wai as the Investor Relation Officer of the
Company to whom comments and suggestions of the shareholders
are welcome and can be addressed. Shareholders are encouraged to
attend the annual general meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice
is given. The Chairman as well as chairmen of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and/or Remuneration Committee, or in their
absence, Directors are available to answer shareholders’ questions on
the Group’s businesses at the meetings. All shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders. If the poll is
demanded, the poll will be conducted by the share registrar of the
Company and the results of the poll are published on the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting our annual report and
audited financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and associated companies are active into two main
operating divisions (i) field of corporate services business, including
professional translation services; company secretarial services; assets
valuation services; information technology consulting services;
business, accounting and corporate development advisory services;
and (ii) wealth management services business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2006 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 50.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 114.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in note 26 and 30 respectively
to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
30th April, 2006 amounted to approximately HK$14,412,000 (2005:
HK$12,423,000).

Detail of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 53 and note 27 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Lo Wah Wai (Chairman)
Wong Wai Tung (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive director

Ip Yu Chak (resigned on 31st October, 2005)

Independent non-executive directors

So Kwok Wai
Lee Kwong Tong
Lui Tin Nang

Liu Ming Ming (appointed on 19th December, 2005)

In accordance with article 116 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Mr. So Kwok Wai shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offers themselves for re-election.

In accordance with article 99 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Liu Ming Ming shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Lo Wah Wai has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of two years commencing from 1st July, 2003,
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party serving
not less than six months’ notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Wong Wai Tung has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 29th
August, 2005, which will continue thereafter until terminated by
either party serving not less than three months’ notice in writing to
the other.

Each of Mr. So Kwok Wai and Mr. Lee Kwong Tong have entered into
a service contract with the Company, both of which have expired on
1st July, 2006. New service contracts were entered into by each of Mr.
So Kwok Wai and Mr. Lee Kwong Tong with the Company on 1st July,
2006 to continue to act as the Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company for a term of one year.

Mr. Lui Tin Nang has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of one year commencing 30th September,
2005 to continue to act as the Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company for a term of one year.

Mr. Liu Ming Ming has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of one year commencing 19th December,
2005.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30th April, 2006, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their respective associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) adopted by the
Company, or to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Long Positions

(a)

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

EERES2ER

RZZERFOA=TH EFLEERAE
REATRARFSETMEREE (EE
REBEPESTEREZ MG ERD (13E 5
K EAE RG] ) BEXVER) Z B iy R AR R B {0

HABARER 7 BRI EXVEFE7 80
AR AN G AN A E R R Pz MR R (B
BREREERMPERI 2 ARG E
ERBIERB 2 HBEIORR) » RATHERN
RRABRIEEZF L ERIIEI2GR[ERF
BEZERM  KRBEARBARRKZ LT AA
ERETEFRHHRESTR ([FETR])
MmABME AR RA] LB R 2 #aw KRR

() RA R AR RIFEE K 10 < B s

Aggregate long
position in the

Approximate
percentage of the

shares and issued share
Name of director Capacity underlying shares capital
B% 17 &% 48 B8 IR 17 BRITRA
EENS g% Witz e BABE DL
Lo Wah Wai Held by controlled corporation (note 1) 139,050,000 40.77%
B BERZEHAREE (K1)
Beneficial owner (note 2) 43,000,000 12.61%
EnEEA (Hiz2)
Wong Wai Tung Beneficial owner 5,000 0.0015%
FEXR ExnEAA
Beneficial owner (note 3) 3,200,000 0.94%

BEmEA AN (BaE3)
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Notes:

1. 61,890,000, 63,024,000 and 14,136,000 shares are owned by Williamsburg
Invest Limited (“WI"”), Mangreat Assets Corp. (“MA") and Homelink Venture
Corp. ("HV") respectively. WI, MA and HV are companies incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and are wholly-owned by Mr. Lo Wah Wai.

2. Options to subscribe for a total of 43,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to Mr. Lo Wah Wai.

3. Options to subscribe for a total of 3,200,000 shares of the Company were
granted to Mr. Wong Wai Tung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th April, 2006, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company had, as at 30th April, 2006, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries or
associates a party to any arrangement that enabled any Director to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed on 4th July, 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees for a period of 10 years ending 3rd July, 2011. On 29th
August, 2002, the 2001 Scheme was terminated and a new share
option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to the
resolution passed by shareholders of the Company.

Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended
30th April, 2006 under the 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

B

ARARER-_FT-FLANABBIR
FHEREWBEREFTS ([T —FBRE
g F2ENNRBEE_T——FEA=
BlETHFHHEzEENEERERRHTKER
T RZZBZE-_FNAZ+HIE  ARAK
REIE-TT-FHERENE - AREBEAR
AR AIB 2 R FE RN — A B ROER 8
((ZZET—_FEKRETE]) -

REE-_ZTNENA=1+HILFEE =&
T OFEREEET ZEREEEHFE
BT

Exercise
Name or Granted Lapsed Cancelled Outstanding price per
category of Outstanding at during the during the during the at 30th April, Exercisable share of the
participant Date of grant 1st May, 2005 year year year 2006 period Company
ZHEA R-BZRE RIBEXRE
#HEH AA-H MA=+H ARG
L] Rt A8 i AT 6 RERRH RERTH RER KK iR Ggidy BROKE
HK$
B
(a) Director
2
Lo Wah Wai 29/08/2002 10,000,000 — — — 10,000,000 29/08/2002 — 0.245
EEH 28/08/2012
11/08/2003 10,000,000 — . — 10,000,000 11/08/2003 — 0.070
10/08/2013
25/08/2004 8,000,000 — — — 8,000,000 25/08/2004 — 0.045
24/08/2014
29/08/2005 — 15,000,000 . — 15,000,000 29/08/2005 — 0.036
28/08/2015
Wong Wai Tung 08/10/2003 3,000,000 — — — 3,000,000 08/10/2003 — 0.0388
IER 07/10/2013
09/12/2005 — 200,000 . — 200,000 09/12/2005 — 0.025
08/12/2015
(b) Employees In aggregate
BB &3t
08/10/2003 3,000,000 — . — 3,000,000 08/10/2003 — 0.0388
07/10/2013
09/12/2005 — 2,000,000 (200,000) — 1,800,000 09/12/2005 — 0.025
08/12/2015
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Exercise
Name or Granted Lapsed Cancelled Outstanding price per
category of Outstanding at during the during the during the at 30th April, Exercisable share of the
participant Date of grant 1st May, 2005 year year year 2006 period Company
28A R-BZHF RIBEAF
HEY RA—-H mA=t+H FREARY
85 RiHAH e R AT 6 RERRH RERTH RER KK i R AT B TERE BRITEE
HK'$
BT
(c) Others In aggregate
Hith - M5+
29/08/2002 10,000,000 — — — 10,000,000 29/08/2002 — 0.245
(Note) 28/08/2012
(Ht3t)
11/08/2003 10,000,000 — — — 10,000,000 11/08/2003 — 0.070
(Note) 10/08/2013
(Ht3t)
08/10/2003 7,500,000 — — — 7,500,000 08/10/2003 — 0.0388
07/10/2013
25/08/2004 8,000,000 — — — 8,000,000 25/08/2004 — 0.045
(Note) 24/08/2014
(fizt)
29/08/2005 — 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000 29/08/2005 — 0.036
(Note) 28/08/2015
(Htt)
09/12/2005 — 400,000 — — 400,000 09/12/2005 — 0.025
08/12/2015
69,500,000 32,600,000 (200,000) — 101,900,000
Note: Miat -

Mr. Ip Yu Chak, who was a non-executive director of the Company, resigned on 31st EXEA4AER _TTRFTA=ZT+—BHEHIARAZ
October, 2005 but continued to be employed by the Company as an external consultant.  JES\ITE S - B EIE SR QR 2 SNEEER - it -
The share options granted to Mr. Ip Yu Chak have accordingly been relocated to under — B FELBEAZERER LREFBATE ] —48 -
the category of “Others” in the above table.

The details of share options valuation are set out in note 30 to the BERSRE(LEZBEHNUERENM T30 -
financial statement.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30th April, 2006, other than the interests and short positions of
the directors or chief executives of the Company disclosed above,
persons or companies who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances of general meetings of the Company or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

FERR
R-ZEXFMA=+AE B EXFEEL
RAEERITROR L BEFARBI - BA

N

NEIRD RAERE D R B EIRIEE 5 M
BB EEXVERSE 2 ]2 350 BBA&SC M AN B 4% 72
ZHRERAR  NEBEREERMEETH
ERTARARAIREEREZREAS £
WEZEMNZAMRAEREES% A L
(BARRREBES KPS KRN EIB6KFTE
ERMAraesrE) AL AFTWT ¢

—

P
E

Aggregate long Approximate
position in the percentage of
Name of Type of shares and the issued
shareholder Capacity interests underlying shares share capital
IR 5 & 21T
HER 5 PR 72 49
BRRERH ) EEME Bitzrr Btk
Ip Yu Chak Held by controlled corporation Corporate 69,220,000 20.30%
(Note 1)
BaE BRXENARRFA NG| (Btat1)
Beneficial owner Personal 43,000,000 12.61%
(Note 2)
BEHERA & A (Bfat2)
Notes: Miat -
1. 62,380,000 and 6,840,000 shares are owned by B & M Associates Limited (“"BM") 1. 62,380,000/% % 6,840,0000% #% 15 Jh % BlE B & M

and World Standard Development Limited (“WS") respectively. BM and WS are
companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued share
capital of BM and WS are wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Yu Chak.

2. Options to subscribe for a total of 43,000,000 shares of the Company were
granted to Mr. Ip Yu Chak.

Associates Limited ([BMJ) & World Standard
Development Limited ([WS]) #E & ° BM & WS 15
REBEZESHMA Y - E2HBEITRAT
MELBLE2EHRE °

2. HuBRARAEERBRELARBALAAH
43,000,000/ f& 3 °
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Save as disclosed above, the directors or chief executive officer of the
Company are not aware of any persons or corporations who, as at
30th April, 2006, were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
5% or more of the voting power at general meetings of the Company
and were also, as a practicable matter, able to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During year ended 30th April, 2006, the Group has sold 30 shares,
being 30% of the entire issued capital of Innovation Advertising
Limited (formerly known as BMI Innovation Limited), a 30%-owned
associate of the Group, to Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, a younger brother of
Mr. Lo Wah Wai (the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company) for a consideration of HK$15,000. Accordingly, the Group
has disposed of its entire share interest in Innovation Advertising
Limited. The consideration was derived at after arm’s lengths
negotiations and the Board considered that the consideration was fair
and reasonable.

In the opinion of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company, the above transaction was entered on normal commercial
terms.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in
a business that competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the services provided to the Group’s largest and five
largest customers accounted for 15% and 42% of the Group’s
turnover respectively. None of the Directors, their respective
associates, nor any shareholders of the Company who own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers during the year.

In view of the nature of the Group’s business no major suppliers were
noted.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed under section “Directors’ interests in securities”, Mr. Lo
Wah Wai individually and collectively entitled to exercise or control
the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power at the general
meetings of the Company and who are able, as a practical matter, to
direct or influence the management of the Company or considered to
be the management shareholder of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information set out on pages 15 to 35 and information
incorporated by reference constitutes the Corporate Governance
Report of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company, based
on such confirmation, considers Mr. So Kwok Wai, Mr. Lee Kwong
Tong, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Liu Ming Ming to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee on 4th July, 2001 with
written terms of reference for the purposes of reviewing and
providing supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises Mr. So Kwok
Wai, Mr. Lee Kwong Tong, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Liu Ming Ming.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management and the external auditors financial reporting matters
including the annual results for the year ended 30th April, 2006.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

During the year ended 30th April, 2006, the Company was in
compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as set out in
Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules. Except that from 1st July,
2005, actions were taken to comply with the CG Code which has
become effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1st
January, 2005 to replace the Board Practices and Procedures as set in
Rules 5.35 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, tendered
their resignation as auditors of the Company on 15th June, 2005 as a
result of the failure by both parties in reaching a consensus on the
auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 30th April, 2005. The
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30th April,
2004 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Grant Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, was appointed on 15th
June, 2005 to fill the casual vacancy arising on the resignation of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, and will hold
office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The financial statements of the Company for the years ended 30th
April, 2005 and 2006 were audited by Grant Thornton. A resolution

will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Grant
Thornton, Certified Public Accountants, as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lo Wah Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th July, 2006
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Certified Public Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International

TO THE MEMBERS OF
B M INTELLIGENCE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
HREERERERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 50 to 113 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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Auditors’ Report
7% CIE:

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th April,
2006 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24th July, 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement

mElRER

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

2006 2005
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3 FET FAET
(restated)
(E5))
Revenue g 5 42,427 20,571
Cost of services provided R RBE AR (28,770) (14,649)
Gross profit EF 13,657 5,922
Other operating income H At 48 & A 687 292
Gain on disposal of partial interest & BB A | 281
in a subsidiary %5 2 W s — 3
Administrative and operating expenses 17 & 4& & B % (13,881) (10,107)
Loss on sales of short term investments & 52 #1418 & 548 — (216)
Operating profit/(loss) rmERA, (EiE) 463 (4,106)
Finance charge on obligations BEREREZ
under finance leases Bh & AR (10) 9)
Gain on disposal of investment HERBEQR 2
in an associate "EZ W 29 —
Share of results of associates JEMREEE R A EE 1,295 626
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BETBHAERN, (FE) 7 1,777 (3,489)
Income tax expense FriS T X 10 — —
Profit/(Loss) for the year EEERN(BE) 1,777 (3,489)
Attributable to: T A -
Equity holders of the Company RARBRAFFAA 11 1,826 (3,478)
Minority interests LERE S (49) (11)
Profit/(Loss) for the year REERRN(BE) 1,777 (3,489)
Dividends ®E 12 — —
Earnings/(Loss) per share for KEEXQATDREFTRA
profit/(loss) attributable to equity  FEE R (BE) 2
holders of the Company BRER
during the year (F#]) 13
— basic — HXK HKO0.54 cents (HK1.02 cents
A4l L)
— diluted — #E N/A T & F N/A I~ i@ F
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 30th April, 2006
RZZETRFHUA=1H

2006 2005
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEKREE 14 993 1,286
Interests in associates R R 2R 17 1,407 846
Available-for-sale financial AEHENBEE
assets/Other investments EMiEE 18 455 588
2,855 2,720
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JFE Ui BR 18 19 7,835 3,159
Deposits, prepayments and Ze  BRNZKER
other receivables H b e U BR 18 1,639 1,200
Amount due from an associate P& B 2 N B SR IE 20 557 191
Amount due from a minority FE L B B8 A &)
shareholder of a subsidiary 8% R BB 21 156 242
Cash and cash equivalents He keSS EEAR 22 15,740 10,940
25,927 15,732
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges and other payables Bt ERAREMENIEKE 23 10,261 1,911
Amount due to an associate JE 15 B & 2 |) B 20 366 159
Obligations under finance leases BEMEAE —
— due within one year M —F R EE 24 33 200
Taxation payable FE B 18 91 91
10,751 2,361
Net current assets RBEEFE 15,176 13,371
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBERE 18,031 16,091
Non-current liabilities EFRBEE
Obligations under finance leases MEMEEAE —

— due over one year M — 1% 5| 5 24 — 33
Net assets EEFE 18,031 16,058
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity KATREFEA

holders of the Company EiEERE
Share capital AR AR 26 3,410 3,410
Reserves 7 1 14,412 12,423
17,822 15,833
Minority interests DB RER 209 225
Total equity 4R 2 18,031 16,058

Lo Wah Wai
EER
DIRECTOR
]
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Balance Sheet
BEESEX

At 30th April, 2006
RZZETRFHUA=1H

2006 2005
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FE T FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARZIEE 15 200 200
Amount due from a subsidiary = NGIE ] 16 — 15,426
200 15,626
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TET RIA 67 67
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U BT BB A B FRIE 16 15,435 134
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEHBEEE 22 43 353
15,545 554
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges EETEA 391 347
Net current assets RBEEFE 15,154 207
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERABESE 15,354 15,833
EQUITY =
Share capital A% 7R 26 3,410 3,410
Reserves {1 27 11,944 12,423
Total equity R 15,354 15,833
Lo Wah Wai Wong Wai Tung
EEH TER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
E -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERERBER

For the year ended 30th April, 2006

HE=

ZERFOA=THLFE

Minority
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company interests Total
SY
ENRRFEEARERS BRRER &%
Share
Share Share Special option Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRE
BRA  ROEE  HHEEE wE  RHER Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiEx T FiET FiET FiET TR
(note 26) (note)
(Wi 7E26) (B 3E)
At 1st May, 2004, RZZTME
as previously nA-R/"
reported as equity B RER 3,410 27,180 (200) — (11,079) 19,311 - 19,311
At 1st May, 2004, RZZTME
as previously nA-R/"
separately reported as BABIZESA
minority interests LR R R - — — — — — 212 212
At st May, 2004, RoZTME
as restated 1A—R " &7l 3,410 27,180 (200) — (11,079) 19,311 212 19,523
Loss for the year rEEER — — — — (3,478) (3,478) (1) (3,489)
Total recognised income KEEDRR
and expense for the year ZEBWARS — — — — (3,478) (3,478) (1) (3,489)
Disposal of partial HERBAR
interest in a subsidiary BiER — — — — - - 24 24
At 30th April, R-ZZZRF
2005 mA=+H 3,410 27,180 (200) — (14,557) 15,833 225 16,058
At 30th April, 2005, RZZZRF
as previously mA=+H
reported as equity BRI AR 3,410 27,180 (200) — (14,557) 15,833 — 15,833
At 30th April, 2005, R-ZZZhF
as previously mA=+H
separately reported as BABYENA
minority interests DEREER — — — — — — 225 225
At 30th April, 2005, RZEZTHE
as restated mA=+AH " &7l 3,410 27,180 (200) — (14,557) 15,833 225 16,058
Profit/(Loss) for the year REFRR/ (KE) — — — — 1,826 1,826 (49) 1,777
Total recognised income AEEEHAL
and expense for the year ~ BIA R — — — — 1,826 1,826 (49) 1,777
Equity-settled share based ~ LAEZ X2
payment expenses BiHR% — — — 163 — 163 — 163
Share option lapsed FEREMZ
during the year FEliE — - — (1) 1 - - -
Capital injection by DUBRR
minority interests Emih — — — — — — 33 33
At 30th April, R-ZBEXRE
2006 mA=1+H 3,410 27,180* (200)* 162* (12,730)* 17,822 209 18,031
* The aggregate amount of these balances of HK$14,412,000 (2005: * ZENESHRT A H14,412,0008 T (ZTERF -
HK$12,423,000) in surplus is included as reserves in the consolidated balance 12,423,000 70) BB MBIEEGREEERER
sheet. ZEEA -
Note: The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the — ffiF - BHEHEENR ST —FEEEER - wREN

shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s shares

issued for their acquisition at the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 2001.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERETRER

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFTH 2
ACTIVITIES HERE
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BETER SR (EE) 1,777 (3,489)
Adjustments for: R
Impairment of receivables JE W BR TR R 1B 343 220
Depreciation e 646 637
Equity-settled share based NHEE=m X2
payment expenses A& 19 B 2 163 —
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEMBEEY
financial assets BB E 277 —
Interest income FLEWA (78) (3)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE R
plant and equipment Rz EE 77 —
Loss on sale of short term i & 52 HR
investments KREZEE — 216
Gain on disposal of interest HEREBE RA 2 e
in an associate 2 Was (29) —
Gain on disposal of partial interest i & B B A | EB
in a subsidiary L& — (3)
Share of results of associates BB & N A ¥4 (1,295) (626)
Finance charge on obligation under & E AR
finance leases ZEEER 10 9
Operating profit/(loss) before BEESEHAIZ
working capital changes gEBER (F8) 1,891 (3,039)
Increase in trade receivables JRE L B 18 32 N (5.019) (658)
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits, & ENRER
prepayments and other receivables FE W BR 18 (15 j][]) Ve : ¥ (439) 473
(Increase)/Decrease in amount & B 2 N B SR IE
due from an associate (3% )JD)//JEJZQ‘ (366) 76
Decrease/(Increase) in amount due JFE W B JB A =)
from a minority shareholder L ER R RIE
of a subsidiary w7 (g ) 86 (108)
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued Bt &R R EAM
charges and other payables FEfTRRIEE N, O ) 8,350 (738)
Increase in amount due to fﬁﬂﬁﬁ%’&
an associate FKIE BN 207 121
NET CASH GENERATED SETEEES
FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING (FTRA)BR&FH
ACTIVITIES 4,710 (3,873)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERETRER

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEFHZ
ACTIVITIES HERE
Dividend received from an associate =R AN 750 684
Capital injection by minority interests 9\%(!&%%51&%3 33 —
Acquisition of short term investments Uz 3§ 55 #14% & = (320)
Proceeds from sale of short term HEQHKRE
investments Fr 15 5018 — 104
Acquisition of an associate Wt e B 2 A (2) —
Interest received B F B 78 3
Acquisition of available-for-sale WAt &
financial assets/other investments MISEE,/ HigE (144) (588)
Purchase of property, WHE % -
plant and equipment [ 5 I 5% 16 (430) (346)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & B & R T 155018 15 —
Proceeds from disposal of HENREA
partial interest in a subsidiary *BT%%&Z?W%?’( — 27
NET CASH GENERATED RETBRE
FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING (FRA) 2
ACTIVITIES ReFE 300 (436)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METFH 2
ACTIVITIES ReRE
Repayment of obligations under BEMEAEZ
finance leases B (200) (167)
Finance charge on obligations under BEMEERAEZ
finance leases B & R AR (10) 9)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBRAZ
ACTIVITIES ReBH (210) (176)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BE&RELZE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEEM (RD) BHE 4,800 (4,485)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHUZRER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR BE&EEEHR 10,940 15,425
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBER
AT END OF THE YEAR ReZHEEHR 15,740 10,940
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006

HE=

00

ZERFOA=THLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law
(Revision 2001) of Cayman Islands on 20th April, 2001. The
address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309 GT, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, British West Indies, and its principal place of business is
Units 3306-12, 33rd Floor, Shui On Centre, Nos. 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the provision of corporate services
and wealth management services.

The financial statements on pages 50 to 113 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The financial statements include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2006
were approved by the board of directors on 24th July, 2006.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

From 1st May, 2005, the Group has adopted for the first time
the new or revised standards and interpretations of HKFRS,
which are relevant to its operations. These include the following
new, revised and renamed standards:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS (Cont’d)

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HK(SIC) Int —15 Operating Leases — Incentives

All the standards have been applied retrospectively except where
specific transitional provisions require a different treatment and
accordingly the 2005 financial statements and their presentation
have been amended in accordance with HKAS 8. Due to the
change in accounting policies, the 2005 comparatives contained
in these financial statements differ from those published in the
financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2005.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

o8

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS (Cont'd)

Significant effects on current, prior or future periods arising
from the first-time application of the standards listed above in
respect to presentation, recognition and measurement of
accounts are described in the following notes:

2.1

2.2

Adoption of HKAS 1

The application of HKAS 1 has resulted in a change in the
presentation of the financial statements. Minority interests
are now included as a separate line item within equity.
Profit and loss attributable to minority interests and that
attributable to equity holders of the Company is now
presented as an allocation of the net result of the year. In
addition, in previous years, the Group’s share of tax
attributable to associates was included as a component of
the Group’s taxation charge/credit in the consolidated
income statement. Upon the adoption of HKAS 1, the
Group's share of the post-acquisition results of associates
is presented net of the Group’s share of tax attributable to
associates.

Adoption of HKFRS 2

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 2 on 1st May, 2005, the
Group did not recognise the financial effect of share
options until they were exercised.

The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation
to the expensing of the fair value of share options granted
to directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiary, determined at the date of grant of the share
options, with a corresponding credit to equity, unless the
transaction is a cash settled share-based payment.

According to the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2, the
Group has not applied HKFRS 2 retrospectively to share
options that were granted after 7th November, 2002 and
had vested before 1st May, 2005.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS (Cont’d)

2.3

24

Adoption of HKAS 39

Prior to the adoption of HKAS 39, the Group recorded its
other investments at cost less any provision for impairment
losses.

On the adoption of HKAS 39, the Group classified these
investments as available-for-sale financial assets and
measured these financial assets at fair value. For
investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any provision for
impairment losses.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS 39,
it does not permit the recognition, derecognition and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities in
accordance with the standard on a retrospective basis. The
adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in any change in the
measurement of the Group’s other investments other than
the reclassification of these investments as available-for-
sale financial assets on 1st May, 2005.

Other standards adopted

The adoption of other new or revised standards or
interpretations did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies. The specific transitional
provisions contained in some of these standards were
considered. The adoption of these other standards did not
result in any changes to the amounts or disclosures in
these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

KA RNEBET 2 BB KE
HEA (F|)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS (Cont'd) 2.

EBREHHES
ftmT

Was &k 2 %

2.5 The effect of changes in the accounting policies on the 2.5
consolidated income statement is summarised below:

Effect of adopting

o0

BATHgEZEE
HKAS 1# HKFRS 2# Total
ERgGY TBUBHRE
ERIE1H# FERIE 255 # &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T FET
Year ended 30th April, BE-_ZZ2RE
2006 MA=+BLFE
Increase in staff costs 8 T A 2538 0 — 163 163
Decrease in share of results & {4 Bt & A &
of associates EERD (449) — (449)
Decrease in income B HRAERD
tax expense 449 — 449
Total decrease in profit I 2 IR > e RE
for the year — (163) (163)
Decrease in basic earnings & f% E AN 2 )5 2
per share —  (HKO0.05 cents  (HKO0.05 cents
) (M)
Year ended 30th April, BE-ZZERHF
2005 MA=+HLFEE
Decrease in share of FE L B R A
results of associates EERD (133) — (133)
Decrease in income it
tax expense s 133 — 133
Total change in loss AEEEBEESHBE
for the year — — —
Change in basic earnings BREARFNEH
per share — — —
# adjustments which take effect retrospectively # BER 2 AE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS (Cont'd)

2.6

2.7

The effect of changes in the accounting policies on the
consolidated balance sheet is summarised below:

2.

KA RNEBET 2 BB KE
HEA (F|)

26 BIBRREPUGEEERER
ZEREHAWT

Effect of adopting

HKFRS 2#
RANEBMBEHRE
EREHR 2 E#
HK$'000
FHE T
At 30th April, 2006 R-ZEEXFNA=+AH
Increase/(decrease) in equity: #EziE N, G L) -
Share option reserve B IR 162
Accumulated losses ZEBE (162)
# adjustments which take effect retrospectively # BHER AR

New Standards or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following standards
or interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of such standards and interpretations will not
result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures '

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits — Actuarial
Gains and Losses,
Group Plans and
Disclosures 2

HKAS 21 (Amendment)  The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates — Net
Investment in a Foreign
Operation ?

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup
Transactions 2

HKAS 39 (Amendment) The Fair Value Option ?

27 CEMEEHRERZHTENR
2E

AEBARREFHRATIICHEME R R
R EAHRE - NAREFAEG
RNz ELNRREE TG REE LA
KEZEHHR -

B gHER BAEE
F15 (BFTA)
BB £ BE®RFA — BE
F19% (BETA) BI > £EHER
B>
BE G ER INEEREH 7
215 (BFIA) 2 — BHEBZ
F A
BB ER BAERERRAEME
F395k (BRI X)) RHZEEREY
g T IA?
EEGHER NP ERERE
F39% (BRI &)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BY 1% SR 3R MY &E

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS (Cont’d)

2.7 New Standards or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Cont’d)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
(Amendment)

Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
and Insurance Contracts —
Financial Guarantee

Contracts 2

First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Exploration for
and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources 2

Exploration for and Evaluation
of Mineral Resources 2
Financial Instruments —
Disclosures !

Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease 2

HKFRS 1 & HKFRS 6
(Amendments)

HKFRS 6
HKFRS 7

HK(IFRIC) — Int 4

HK(IFRIC) — Int 5 Rights to Interests Arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration
and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds 2
Liabilities Arising from
Participating in a Specific
Market — Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment 3

HK(IFRIC) — Int 6

HK(IFRIC) — Int 7 Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies *

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 °

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives ©

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2006

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st December,
2005

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2006

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, 2006

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2006
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Annual Report 2006 4 &

o2

2,

R E] R 2 BB K]

HEA (&)

27 BEEMEEHRERZHTENR

2@

BB ER
FI9W MBI
B 75 S 2R
F 45 (BRI A)

BEEMBHREER
FVRRER
MG IRE £
F65% (BT A)

A B RS ER
E 657
A B RS ER
F 75
54 (BB HRE
BEZE®)
— REER
54 (BB HRE
REZE®)
— BREESR

7/l

7/l

EFE (BB BRE
“wEZE®)
— REF6M

7/l

EFE (BB BRE
REZE®)
— REETR

7/l

EFE (BB BRE

REZE®)

— REE8H
EFE (BB BRE
REZE®)

— BREFR

7/l

TRITA: EAR
AERRRAEHN —
T RIERS 2

BRRMBEHS
SEMNBEESR
R BB R wF 2

WELR 2 WRR
ST
SBTA — RE'

BETZHRELEEE
HE?

B BER
BREEESEL
32 A2

SRBRTBESE
2BE—BET
REF R

RIEFEG A
F2 [EMBEIR
ET SRS
fERE R
BEMIEHRE %R
E2HzHE®

BEfEBEZIIAT
EG

1 R-BZLEF-A—BARZ2ERABZFE

B AR -

2 RZBERF-A-—BR2ERABZFE

HIRE A -

3 R-ZZRAF+-_A—BRZEMIBZF

EHR AR -

4 R-BERE=ZA-BRZEABZFE

B AR -

5 RIZBZERFRAA-BRZERBZFE

HIE A -

6 RZBZERERNA-BRZERABZFE

HIR A e



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME
POLICIES
3.1 Basis of preparation 31 REEXE

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these financial statements are

summarised below.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those

ANRELEMBRRIIES
FHBUR I T XA o

BETHMHEERYHABZE
AN - B R R TD K IR R SR B
AEERH - sTEEEFART
XZ & BE

BEIE mEVBEHRRKSHE

SRt REBR - BEURFR
AANEREEBHREGEMFRIT
B2 EREBEMIESL - HEER
XEBRIEBHRGERZB

estimates. T e

3.2 Basis of consolidation 3.2 HREEE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the FEMBmEkeEANT REM
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries BERARBEEFNA=1TRHLZ
made up to 30th April each year. Bk -
Minority interests represent the interests of outside DR R ERIEINTRRERLE
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of XBERMBRAREEFE ZE
subsidiaries. oo

3.3 Subsidiaries 3.3 HMEBAT

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has the
power to control the financial and operating policies.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Company. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains

on transactions between group companies are

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence of an impairment of
transferred.

(R INEIECRNNCIRSE: $23  Eoe -y
BREERRZER - HEBAR
EEHREEEARRZBEEE
A AR - MB AR EESIEL

N =]

Ltz BEELGEE AR -

EEARABZRS BHEXR
eliminated. SZARERNZE TUAEHE - B

IZBRIEEREREEEE
HIRRE GRAREREBENT
LA 38 -

the asset
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006

BE

o4

SEERFNACTALEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are carried at
cost less any impairment loss. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable at the balance
sheet date.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able
to exert significant influence, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of voting rights
but which are neither subsidiaries nor investments in joint
ventures. Investment in associates is initially recognised at
cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
method.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is recognised in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHERE (H)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
3.5 Foreign currency translation 3.5 HEmE

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

In the separate financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all separate
financial statements of subsidiaries, originally presented in
a currency different from the Group’s presentation
currency, have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing rates at the balance sheet date.
Income and expenses have been converted into Hong
Kong dollars using the average rate over the reporting
period. Any differences arising from this procedure have
been dealt with in the translation reserves in equity.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
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3.

00

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.6

3.7

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the amounts received and receivable
for the sales of services, net of rebates and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is
recognised as follows:

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided and the transaction can be measured reliably, and
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group.

Income arising from wealth management services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered and
the amount can be reliably estimated and it is probable
that it will be received.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-
proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

over the terms of the leases
20%-25%
25%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment, interests in subsidiaries and
associates are subject to impairment testing.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use based on an internal discounted cash flow
evaluation. Impairment losses recognised for cash-
generating units are charged pro-rata to the assets in the
cash-generating unit.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.8

3.9

Impairment of assets (Cont’'d)

An impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Leases
Finance leases

The economic ownership of a leased asset is transferred to
the lessee if the lessee bears substantially all the risks and
rewards related to the ownership of the leased asset. The
related asset is recognised at the time of inception of the
lease at the present value of the lease payments plus
incidental payment, if any, to be borne by the lessee (the
“initial value”). A corresponding amount is recognised as a
finance lease liability, irrespective of whether some of
these lease payments are payable up-front at the date of
inception of the lease.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance lease
agreement corresponds to those applied to comparable
acquired assets. The corresponding finance lease liability is
reduced by lease payments less finance charges, which are
expensed to finance costs.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Annual rentals applicable to such
operating leases are charged to the income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease terms.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.10 Financial assets

FTEEHBEEGE (B)

3.10 K EE

In previous years, the Group classified its investments in
securities, other than subsidiaries and associates as other
investments.

Other investments are securities which are intended to be
held on a continuing basis for an identified long-term
purpose. Other investments are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Provisions are made when
the fair value of such securities has declined below the
carrying amounts, unless there is evidence that the decline
is temporary. The amount of the reduction is recognised as
an expense in the income statement. Provisions against the
carrying value of other investments are written back to
income when the circumstances and events that led to the
write-downs or write-offs cease to exist and there is
persuasive evidence that the new circumstances and
events will persist for the foreseeable future.

From 1st May, 2005 onwards, the Group classifies its
financial assets into the following categories: available-for-
sale financial assets and receivables. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised on the trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred. An assessment for
impairment is undertaken at least at each balance sheet
date whether or not there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are either designated
to this category or do not qualify for inclusion in any
of the other categories of financial assets. For
available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised
in income statement when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
reverse in subsequent periods.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Any
changes in their value are recognised in income
statement.

Receivables are provided against when objective
evidence is received that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due to it in accordance with
the original terms of the receivables. The amount of
the write-down is determined as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.11 Accounting for income taxes

FTEEHBEEGE (B)

3.11 REH 2=t A&

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at
the balance sheet date. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in the income
statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affect neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
difference arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.1

3.12

3.13

Accounting for income taxes (Cont’'d)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in the income statement, or in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited directly to equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and on
hand, time deposits with banks and other financial
institutions with original maturities of three months or
less, which form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.14 Retirement benefits costs and short term employee
benefits

(i)

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.14 Retirement benefits costs and short term employee
benefits (Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Share-based employee compensation
All share-based payment arrangements granted after

7th November, 2002 and had not vested on 1st May,
2005 are recognised in the financial statements. The

Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets).
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.14 Retirement benefits costs and short term employee
benefits (Cont'd)

(iv) Share-based employee compensation (Cont’d)

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in share option
reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate of the
number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share
options ultimately are exercised than originally
estimated.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

3.15 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accrued charges
and other payables, amount due to an associate and
finance lease liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised as
an expense in finance costs in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.15

3.16

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)
Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial value less
the capital element of lease repayments (see note 3.9
above).

Accrued charges and other payables

Accrued charges and other payables and amount due to
an associate are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
the Group has determined that business segments be
presented as the primary reporting format and
geographical segments as the secondary reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting, unallocated costs
represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist
primarily of property, plant and equipment, receivables and
operating cash, and mainly exclude available-for-sale
financial assets, amount due from an associate and a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary. Segment liabilities
comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as
amount due to an associate.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant
and equipment.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue are
based on the country in which the customer is located and
total assets and capital expenditure are where the assets
are located.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.17 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party:
— controls, is controlled, or is under common

control with, the Group;

— has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group;

— has joint control over the Group;

(i) the party is an associate;
(iii)  the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(v)  the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv); or

(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv)
or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

3. FESHBEME (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the
HEZ

/8

year ended 30th April, 2006
ZERFONA=ZFTHIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the impairment of trade
receivables on a regular basis. This estimate is based on the
credit history of its customers and current market conditions.
Management reassess the impairment of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was calculated using the
Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model based on various
assumptions made by the Group’s management. The significant
assumptions and inputs into the calculation include an
estimated life of share options granted based on exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations, the volatility of share
price which was determined by reference to historical data and
the weighted average share price and exercise prices of the
share options granted. Furthermore, the calculation assumed no
future dividends. Details of the inputs are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

5. REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
amounts received and receivable from services provided by the
Group to outside customers during the year, and is analysed as

Wy %8

ozt (REDASE 2 S5 38) I AR E T
ParI SR 1R 64 AR S 2 2 Mo M U B
HFE AN

follows:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & T FET
Corporate services T E R 21,640 12,440
Wealth management services B EEE RS 20,787 8,131
42,427 20,571

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
Primary reporting format — business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions — (i) corporate services which include
business, accounting and corporate development advisory
services, company secretarial services, translation services,
information technology services; and (ii) wealth management
services. These divisions are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information.

7 &b & ¥t
TEREHA XKD

BREAERE  AEBHEBESD EWE
B —(O)ERE BEEK - 25k
NEIEEEERS  ArWERY - 8
R - BRABHERD - R = B
fRiE - AEBRBEFEHEER IR
B R D REVERERE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 35 AR MY R

For the year ended 30th April, 2006

HE=

80

ZERFOA=THLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d)

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

6. ZMER (B

FEHEFR

BRAWEXRHEZDRERBEFIMT -

Wealth
management
Corporate Services services Consolidated
TERE BEEERE RE
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERx FTET TER FET TR FTET
(restated)
(E7))

Revenue e 21,640 12,440 20,787 8,131 42,427 20,571
Segment results DEEE 1,932 (1,063) 878 (880) 2,810 (1,943)
Interest income FBUWA 78 3
Gain on disposal of &M E D A

partial interest HinEn

in a subsidiary Yz — 3
Loss on sale of short HERHKEZ

term investments BB = (216)
Unallocated corporate kDB %

expenses = (2,425) (1,953)
Operating profit/(loss) & 4% 7,/ (E518) 463 (4,106)
Finance charge on BEARERE

obligations under ZEERAR

finance leases (10) 9)
Gain on disposal of HEEE DA

investment in BE 2w

an associate 29 —
Share of results of (B

associates NEEE 1,295 626
Profit/(Loss) for the year 7N B |,/ (E518) 1,777 (3,489)

B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont’d)

6. ZMER (B

FEREAN — EBI WG

Wealth
management
Corporate Services services Consolidated
ERK HEEERE ge
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FET FTEx FETT FER FET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 18,221 13,954 7,972 2,449 26,193 16,403
Interests in associates REtE QA Y
T 1,407 846
Unallocated corporate &% Bt (b %
assets BE 1,182 1,203
Consolidated total BAREE
assets “E 28,782 18,452
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities DEAE 4,202 1,018 6,158 1,029 10,360 2,047
Unallocated corporate K73 Bl 1> %
liabilities BE 391 347
Consolidated total HABRE
liabilities FEk-o] 10,751 2,394
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. THEH (&)
Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont'd) FEREFRX — EXK DI (H)
Segment information about these businesses is presented below. BRALEER 2D HEMBRFINAT -
Wealth
management
Corporate Services services Consolidated
1 % R 3% HEEERE )
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TRERT TAT TRERT TAT TRERT TAT

OTHER INFORMATION Hih &

Capital expenditure BARFX 262 208 168 538 430 746
Depreciation e 377 415 269 222 646 637
Impairment of receivables & Y Bk 78 i & 343 189 — 31 343 220
Loss on disposal of HEME -

property, plant BB &

and equipment i EE 8 — 69 — 77 —
Loss on sale of & % 5

short term "REZ

investments &8 — 216 — — — 216
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments REREFRN - HEDT
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the REEZFELEMBEAEDTHERFE
Mainland China, including Macau (the “PRC"). The following (BRI ([FE]) - TRAELXNEER
table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by RMETS (FEREPHIERETE) 2K
geographical market, principally determined by the location of wmoA
customers:

Revenue by
geographical market

RWETIHE 2 2 W&
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAEXT
Hong Kong BB 40,863 17,494
The PRC H 1,564 3,077
42,427 20,571
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006

HE=

ZERFOA=THLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

(Cont'd)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of total
assets, and capital expenditure, analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located:

6. ZMER (B

REHRERA

i & 7 &R (&)

REEREAFAX ZREEREN D

BmOMWT

Total assets

Capital expenditure

BmEE EXREX
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET FET FAET
Hong Kong BB 24,544 16,071 371 738
The PRC H 4,238 2,381 59 8
28,782 18,452 430 746
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BRAEAEBANER (HE)
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiBT
Profit/(Loss) before income tax has & FT 8% Bl % 5] (E5i8)
been arrived at after charging: BB A T S IHZEEL
Auditors’ remuneration % R0 B & 214 188
Depreciation of property, M- BEMREBITE :
plant and equipment:
Owned assets BEEEE 511 542
Assets held under finance leases REHRERFBEZEE 135 95
Impairment of receivables JE W BR TR R B 343 220
Impairment loss on AHEEMBEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets &l {E &5 18 277 —
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - WELRZHE
plant and equipment 2B 77 —
Operating lease rentals KwEHEMES 1,534 1,418
Staff costs (note 9) BT AA (fiF5E9) 11,766 8,074
And after crediting: WEt A
Interest income B U A 78 3
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B 35 AR MY R

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 8. EENEREEREZME
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
Contribution Equity-settled
to defined share based
Salaries and  contribution payment
Fees allowances plans expenses Total
ek EBRMT UER T
He =13 SHE 2 ZRIBRX At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TEx FET TEx
Year ended 30th April, 2006 BZE-2ERE
A=tHLEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lo Wah Wai BERLE - 520 12 74 606
Mr. Wong Wai Tung TRREE — 396 12 1 409
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Ip Yu Chak EREERHE
(resigned on 31st October, 2005) (ER-ZTREF — 240 6 74 320
TRA=Z+—BEA)
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EPN: Bt 40 — - - 40
Mr. So Kwok Wai HEESE 40 — — - 40
Mr. Lee Kwong Tong FhEXE 40 — - — 40
Mr. Liu Ming Ming ZHBEE
(appointed on 19th (R-ZZREF
December, 2005) +-ATNLBEZT) 5 — — - 5
125 1,156 30 149 1,460
Year ended 30th April, 2005 BZE-221%
A=tHLEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lo Wah Wai BERLE — 480 12 - 492
Mr. Wong Wai Tung TRREE — 99 3 — 102
Mr. Ip Yu Chak * BEREfaes — 120 3 — 123
Mr. Ng Chi Hoi REdEHE
(resigned on 31st January, 2005) (BERZZZREF — 353 — — 353
—A=+—-HE
Non-executive director FHTESE
Mr. Ip Yu Chak * ErEat — 360 9 — 369
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lui Tin Nang AR EE 5 — - — 5
Mr. So Kwok Wai EE LA 60 — — — 60
Mr. Lee Kwong Tong FhERE 60 — — — 60
125 1,412 27 — 1,564
* Re-designated from an executive director to non-executive director on 6th * R-ZZNENANHEAERTEEATAS

August, 2004.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 8. ESKEAREEEZHME (&)

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FARBREENESRERETMNE

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. For the year 2B RBE_ZTERFMNA=TH

ended 30th April, 2005, two directors waived emoluments of HEFEE WMEBEEDIHRENS

HK$270,000 and HK$270,000, respectively. 270,000/ 7T }2270,0007% 7T °

Employees’ emoluments EEMSE

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the RAEBLESSHALTH H HARE

Group, two (2005: three) were directors of the Company whose TR =F)BREARAESE - §

emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the ZrEeeER L - EBR=%(=ZF

remaining three (2005: two) individuals were as follows: THRF: MB)ATZBE0T -
2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FABT
Salaries and other benefits Fre kEAMBET 1,238 726
Retirement benefits scheme RKAE AT & 50
contributions 34 24

1,272 750

The aggregate emoluments of each of the individuals during MEEREATzZHeREL

both years were below HK$1,000,000. 1,000,000 T AR

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9. EERAMX(BRESMS)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Wages and salaries TERF® 11,132 7,560
Share options granted to ETYTEEkEEBZ

directors and employees B2 163 —

Pension costs — defined RKERA —

contribution plans TRt RETE 270 394

Other staff benefits HtE TwF 201 120

11,766 8,074
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006

BE

10.

80

SEERFNACTALEEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for profits tax has been made in the financial
statements for both years as companies comprising the Group
either had tax losses brought forward which were available to
set off against the assessable profit arising in the respective
jurisdictions for the year or did not generate any assessable
profits.

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit/(loss)
at applicable tax rates:

10. FIBHAX

MAAREE T AREE AT HERFR
EEZBRAREEL ZERTUE MK

§H 2 AR R IE 18
R A
ERFERIEL &G -

o 3 2 R EX A 1] FE
B MEFE 2 M BRRL

BEARERAEZ AR 25 s F

/B8R 2HERNT

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHETT
(restated)
(&B71)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax KRFrEMH AR~ (E1E) 1,777 (3,489)
Tax at Hong Kong profits BZ—EE/% MEBRE17.5%
tax rate of 17.5% AEZHRE 311 (610)
Effect of different tax rates of RABEE 2B AR
subsidiaries operating in the PRC ~ TR X 2 F & (163) 80
Tax effect of expenses not A AENRZAEZ 2
deductible for tax purpose B 174 496
Tax effect of income not taxable HERH 2 WA Z
for tax purpose M2 (422) (212)
Tax effect of prior year EBRTFRBERNS
unrecognised tax losses utilised EEZBBEE (416) (204)
Tax effect of current year tax KEERERRBERE
losses not recognised MR E 448 421
Tax effect of temporary difference FHERERHEZE 2
not recognised TFMW*/’ 68 29
Income tax expense FEHEX = —

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 25.
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

11.

12.

13.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$1,826,000 (2005: loss of HK$3,478,000), a loss
of HK$642,000 (2005: HK$3,478,000) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year (2005: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on the
profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$1,826,000 (2005: Loss of HK$3,478,000) and
on 341,020,000 (2005: 341,020,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended 30th April,
2006 and 2005 is not presented because the Company did not
have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during those periods.

B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT

11.

12.

13.

ERARREFEAEBMEERR
(B 1])

KRaBRAFEAEGES & F
1,826,000 T (Z T T A F : B8
3,478,000/ 7t) # + A 81642,0007% T
ZEET R : 3,478,0008 ) 2 E B
BAAXRRQRMEHRE

R E

EETRBRNAFEZERE (ZEF
heF &\ -

SREF(BHR)

Al

BREAREF,(EE) HRERAFR
AEHBAEE MG (BIE)
1,826,000 T (ZZEZTHF : BE
3,478,000/ 70) R FE A B 1T E @R
341,020,000 ( = T T R F
341,020,0000%) 5+ & -

HRAARRHE-ZEEAAFEFR_2FH

EEH 4 B LEF JE 3 A a1 T
AR MUREINZEFE 2BR

ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ/(%ﬁ) °
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BERKRE
THE GROUP KE
Furniture
Leasehold and Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
HENELE BERRRE EREEEM =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st May, 2004 R-ZZMF
RA—H
Cost BN 184 929 928 2,041
Accumulated depreciation 2EINE (71) (330) (463) (864)
Net book amount EmFE 113 599 465 1,177
Year ended 30th April, 2005 BE-ZZ2RF
MA=+ALEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 113 599 465 1,177
Additions NE 196 207 343 746
Depreciation e (157) (208) (272) (637)
Closing net book amount HRE@FE 152 598 536 1,286
At 30th April, 2005 R-EZRF
mA=+H
Cost DN 380 1,136 1,271 2,787
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (228) (538) (735) (1,501)
Net book amount RHEFE 152 598 536 1,286
Year ended 30th April, 2006 BE-_ZZTARE
MA=+HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 152 598 536 1,286
Additions NE 118 122 190 430
Disposals & (12) (65) — (77)
Depreciation e (158) (218) (270) (646)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 100 437 456 993
At 30th April, 2006 R-BEAE
mA=+H
Cost D 313 1,152 1,461 2,926
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (213) (715) (1,005) (1,933)
Net book amount REFE 100 437 456 993
The net book value of leasehold improvements, furniture and HEMEREE  RALREBEALEKSE
equipment and computer equipment included an amount of MZEEmFEREREREREFRF
approximately HK$18,000 (2005: HK$88,000), HK$86,000 BE pRAEA18,0008 T (ZEF
(2005: HK$112,000) and HK$91,000 (2005: HK$129,000), A ¢ 88,000/ 5t) * 86,000/ 7T (=
respectively in respect of assets held under finance leases. TERHF 112,000/ 70) K 91,000/

T(ZZFEEFRE : 129,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15. AMiBARIZKRE

THE COMPANY

AT

2006 & 2005

HK$'000

FAET

Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRG - RKAE 200

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30th April, RABRZEENFHA=-THNEE
2006 are set out in note 34. MBARFFIEEHNRME34 -

16. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY

THE COMPANY

16. UK B D RRIEA
2

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E | 26,615 26,740
Less: Provision for impairment R E B E (11,180) (11,180)
15,435 15,560
Less: Portion due within one year e MEBEENER—FA
included under current EEZEHm (MiEakao
assets (note a, ¢) (15,435) (134)
Non-current portion included under  JEREEENRNZ
non-current assets (note b) ERB I (M 5Eb) — 15,426
(a) At 30th April, 2006, the amount due from BM Intelligence (@ MRZZEZTXEFMA E‘i’ A EK
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company amounted to RARRAR —MWEAAR BM
approximately HK$15,435,000, after netting off provision Intelligence Limited Z/T)\ il

of HK$11,180,000, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Accordingly, the amount is classified
as a current asset.

is unsecured,
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For the
HEZ

16.

17.

90

year ended 30th April, 2006
ZERFONA=ZFTHIEFE

AMOUNT DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY (Cont'd)
THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

(b) At 30th April, 2005, the amount due from BM Intelligence
Limited amounted to approximately HK$15,426,000, after
netting off provision of HK$11,180,000, was unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms. The
directors confirmed that the Company would not demand
repayment within twelve months from the balance sheet

date. Accordingly, the amount was classified as non-
current asset.

At 30th April, 2005, the amount due from BMI
Consultants Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$134,000 was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. This

16.

FE W Bt BB 2~ B SRR (AR
AR F (&)

R-ZZEZREWMA=+H " ERK
BM Intelligence Limited 2 F & -
& B 11,180,000 T 2 B
1% - #)15,426,00058 JT & & i
B RBURERTERE &
LR ARABTERNEE

BEF+ZEARNEREEFHE
HzREEY BIERDEE »

(b)

RZETERAFMHA=1+H " EWK
KRR —HWB AR HEIERER
AR A B 2 5RIE4134,0007 7T
AEER SEUARKRERE

amount was repaid during the year. B ZERBERFRNLDER -
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. RBtE ARl 2=
THE GROUP rEH
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FH& T
Investments in associates at cost REEE N A ZIKE LKA
Unlisted shares El il &) 502 514
Share of results of associates R iR /Nl [ 905 332
1,407 846
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006

BE

17.

SEERFNACTALEEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d)

THE GROUP (Cont'd)

17. REE=

REHE (F)

DREZ e ()

As at 30th April, 2006, the Group had interests in the following RZEZEXFUNA=+H  AEEET
associates: BI| Bk 4% N ) A RE RS -
Particulars Attributable equity
Country of of issued interest to
Name of company incorporation shares held the Group Principal activity
Directly Indirectly
BT
NEEH & i B L B X gy = rEEELEREIERZ FEED
BEE LIEE3

BMI Appraisals Limited Hong Kong 1,100,000 — 45%  Valuation business

("BMI Appraisals”) ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
RAMABBRFEERRAR BB 1,100,000/% BREE)
([P FFBRETE]) BREETVET
ZE Rk
Fu Teng Limited British Virgin 500 ordinary 45% —  Investment
Islands shares of holding
US$1 each
REBREZES 500/% & A% H 18 REZER
1E T2 Eimk

BMI Surveyors Limited  Hong Kong 90 ordinary — 40%  Property agency

(“BMI Surveyors”) shares of
HK$1 each

HERESE A ZAT BB Ok EFREE E 30
BRAA 18T Tk
(I FBRES.

B ERMTT])

BMI Overseas Hong Kong 250 ordinary 25% —  Provision for
Investment Limited shares of management
("BMI Overseas US$1 each services
Investment”)

58 2500k & X (A REEERE
1ET 2 EBR
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd) 17. REBEE QT 2w (&)
THE GROUP (Cont'd) rEE (&)
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BHREAEEBEE AR EEREEBAAR
associates extracted from their management accounts is set out SEEE AR M BERSZESHT W0
below: T -
2006 2005
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
Total assets mEE 6,408 3,974
Total liabilities FER= R (2,558) (1,025)
Net assets BEFHE 3,850 2,949
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEEGH SRR
associates BEFHE 1,407 846
Revenue U %5 10,666 10,172
Profit/(Loss) for the year KEERR,/ (FE) 2,594 1,382
Group’s share of results of REEFRHNEN
associates for the year /NI ¥ 1,295 626
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of AEECRIBREGETHEARZ
certain associates. The amounts of unrecognised share of those B - MR aREHE A AnEEREZ
associates, extracted from the relevant management accounts of RIEERBE(FRAREE)OT

associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

2006 2005
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHETT
Unrecognised share of losses of A [E Kk R FEAS
associates for the year /NN 97 —
Accumulated unrecognised share  Zit R EREL
of losses of associates R /N 97 —
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18.

19.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/OTHER 18. A HEMBEE HiKE
INVESTMENTS
THE GROUP AEH
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Unlisted investment, at cost ELETIRE - AR 732 588
Less: Impairment loss W R E B R (277) —
455 588
During the year, the Group acquired a further 2.1% interest in FA - AEERWE-—HELT QA
an unlisted company, Union Services and Registrars Inc. (“Union Union Services and Registrars Inc.
Registrars”) for a cash consideration of HK$144,000. At 30th ([ Union Registrars] ) 28 5 2.1% 2 ##
April, 2006, the Group had a 7% interest in Union Registrars. = WEREBEAE144,0008 7L - NZE
Union Registrars provides share registration services for listed ZRFNA=+H ' KAEEEFE Union
companies in Hong Kong. Registrars 7% < # z ° Union Registrars
BEBE LT ATREBROELRE -
In previous years, the Group classified its investments in RBAFE  AEEHEHFREDEAR
securities as other investments. Upon adoption of HKAS 39 on HEMIRE R_ZTEENFHHA—BEMN
1st May, 2005, the Group reclassifies its investments in securities EB G EBEI5R%E 0 NEEBE
as available-for-sale financial assets. FREEHOERIHRLENHEE -
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, these investments do AKRAEEZRA  ZERERN GRS
not have a quoted market price in an active market and the WEMERE  BEREZSKREZAT
preparation of fair value of these investments would involve BESTIHFEARTRREMNEAIFEZ
expense out of the proportion to the value of the members. L - ZERE T AR DR E S
Therefore, these investments shall be measured at cost less any BREBYIEK -
provision for impairment losses.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. FEWERIE
THE GROUP AEH
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAETT
Trade receivables & U BR 18 8,533 3,514
Less: Impairment of receivables o FE U BR TE R (E (698) (355)
Trade receivables — net & Uk BR 18 ) 58 7,835 3,159

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to its
customers.
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19.

20.

21.

22.

94

ZERFOA=THLFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 19. B BRIE (&)
THE GROUP (Cont'd) rEE (&)
The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable at the REER - BRI ZREDTAT ¢

balance sheet date:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHETT
0-60 days 0— 60X 5,051 2,082
61-90 days 61—90K 1,473 386
Over 90 days 90K 1,311 691
7,835 3,159

The Group has recognised a loss of HK$343,000 for the NEEF ARG E343,00008 T (=
impairment of its trade receivables during the year (2005: ZERF 220,000 T) 2 EWERIA
HK$220,000). The loss has been included in administrative and BEEE - ZEBBINARGERZITER K
operating expenses in the income statement. R o
AMOUNT DUE FROM/(TO) AN ASSOCIATE 20. B (FEfY) B6 & DB RIE
THE GROUP rEE
The amount due from / (to) an associate is unsecured, non- FEUR, (FEA) Bt & X B FU0A A KR -
interest bearing and repayable on demand. RERRERER -
AMOUNT DUE FROM A MINORITY 21. BEUHME QA2 BRRAKE
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY
THE GROUP rEH
The amount due from a minority shareholder of a subsidiary is FEW—MEM B ARz —RDEREFRIA
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. REER  RERRERKEER -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. RERBAEEEHEE

The Group The Company

rEH AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FE T FET

Cash at banks and in hand WITRFERS 15,740 10,940 43 353

B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
Annual Report 2006 4 &



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont'd) 22. e kRBELEEER (F)
Included in bank and cash balances of the Group is REBRTRIRE &SP BEFHNAF
HK$3,769,000 (2005: HK$1,195,000) of bank balances BETAARBE(TARBEDFHEZR
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in the 1T#5 883,769,000 L (ZEZEHF -
PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. 1,195,000 7T) - AR W IER] B H

B2 B o

23. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. B EARHEHMESIRIE
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Accrued charges Bt & 4,210 1,094
Commission payable FERA® 5,000 710
Receipt in advance T8 IR 3R 1,051 107
10,261 1,911

24. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 24 MEHEZAE
THE GROUP rEE

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
BREBLSHIE BREESREBEZRE
2006 2005 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FTExX TAET FTER TAR

The obligations under finance MERE ZAERTY

leases are payable as follows: BB HZ A
Within one year —FR 35 210 33 200
In the second to BE-FEERF
fifth year inclusive (BEEEMF) — 35 — 33
35 245 33 233
Less: Future finance charges o RIRBLE AR (2) (12)
Present value of lease obligations & & &~ IR {E 33 233
Less: Amount due for settlement 8l : R—FRFEBEE
within one year shown MAGIER B
under current liabilities aEzeHE (33) (200)
Amount due for settlement M — 1% 5| B
after one year shown under BERBIEIERD
non-current liabilities BECERE — 33
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HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

24. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (Cont'd)
THE GROUP (Cont’'d)
The Group has leased certain of its furniture and equipment,
computer equipment and leasehold improvements under finance
leases. All leases were on a fixed repayment basis in Hong Kong
dollars and no arrangement had been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The Group’s obligations under the
finance leases were secured by lessor's charges over the leased
assets.

25. DEFERRED TAXATION

96

THE GROUP

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
year:

24,

25.

MEMEEZ&E (&)
A S (M)

AEBEREETERMERE - Elks
MEREMERENREEERLAE
E - FABENNIRREE ZBEERR
HE  BWSRBRILHABES LY - K
SEZBREREAEHRLBAMMERE
EMBZEEFER -

I SE B TE
rEH
AEERAFERBEFERRAZEE

ELEMEEE(BE)REBEZIHN
T

Taxable

temporary
differences Tax losses Total

ERB
TREE BlEESE et

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TATT THET TAT

At 1st May, 2004 RZFETWMFARHA—A 116 (116) —
Charge/(credit) to income FAMB A, GEA) I]RA

for the year (40) 40 —
At 30th April, 2005 RZZEZTRFMA=1H 76 (76) —
Charge/(credit) to income FAMB A, GTA) A

for the year (76) 76 —
At 30th April, 2006 RZZEZREMNA=+H — — —

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset.
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)
THE GROUP (Cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$6,554,000 (2005: HK$8,331,000) available
for offset against future profits that are subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax. A deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$435,000 of such losses for the year ended
30th April, 2005. The deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses
amounted to approximately HK$6,554,000 (2005:
HK$7,896,000) and deductible temporary differences of
HK$160,000 (2005: Nil) has not been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

In addition to the above, the Group had unused tax losses
arising through its PRC subsidiaries of approximately
HK$4,022,000 (2005:HK$3,093,000) that will expire in five
years from the dates the losses were incurred. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams of the PRC subsidiaries.

The analysis of expiry dates of unused tax losses of PRC
subsidiaries is as follows:

25.

IEE B R ()
7 5 8 (#)

W%;ta NEEAERBEESNS
BREHZREFN 2 REARBEERE
,%’9 6,554,000 ;L (Z T T A F
8,331,000 7L) - HE_ZTZTHFIA
“S+tHLEFE BEEzZSEEBEY
435,000/ T 2 IR TR B & E B {E 1§
R ARNAEEERBREFITR WA
BMEBEEB2ELHEBEEEY
6,554,000 7t (= T T A &
7,896,000/ 70) R Al R E B MEE £ 4
160,000 T (ZEZTHF « ) W RE

B BB SN REBEFRBENBA
RIEE & 2 R B) A B TE A5 18 494,022,000
BIL(ZZEZEREF : 3,093,000 T)
T¥ABEEEBHETRAFRNER -
FA A A BE E E P B B 8 A 7] B 18 5 7 2R
B M ERRETMELEREEE -

PEINB AR RSB BEREEREA Y
DT

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET

Expires in : TR 51 By ) B R
2006 —TEREF — 110
2007 —EELF 1,222 1,222
2008 —TE)N\F 1,440 1.440
2009 —ETNhEF 321 321
2011 —E——F 1,039 _
4,022 3,093
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A
Number of
Shares Amount
R B ok
HK$'000
TETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each # R EE0.01E T2 @K
Authorised: EERA
At 30th April, RZZEZTRAFR
2005 and 2006 ZEEREFWA=+H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRHR
At 30th April, RZZEZERFR
2005 and 2006 ZEERFWNA="+H 341,020,000 3,410
27 RESERVES 27. A&
THE COMPANY PN
Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R 13 )% 8 BRERE RitBE CEi
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEXT TET
At 1st May, 2004 R-ZZETMNFRA—H 27,180 — (11,279) 15,901
Loss for the year REEEE — — (3,478) (3,478)
At 30th April, 2005 RZZEZREFWA="1H 27,180 — (14,757) 12,423
At 1st May, 2005 RZZEZERFRA—H 27,180 — (14,757) 12,423
Equity-settled share NEzI A2
based payment & 7 A
expenses — 163 — 163
Shares option lapsed FRRBZERE
during the year — (1) 1 —
Loss for the year RNEZERE — — (642) (642)
At 30th April, 2006 R-ZEEXFWA=TH 27,180 162 (15,398) 11,944

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company is also available for
distribution to shareholders provided that the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.
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28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable by
the Group in respect of its office premises as follows:

28.

REHERE
REER  AEERBETAIHEIES

HERBAI M ZARKEEEFIARER
mr

7

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Within one year —F KN 444 808
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ —F =2 F A F (BEEEMF) 52 101
496 909

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to two years.

At 30th April, 2006, the Company had no commitments under
operating leases. (2005:Nil)

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding of the Group and Company at
30th April, 2006 not provided for in the financial statements are

29.

AEERBELEEHEERETYE-H
ERNMERHB—EMEF -

REZZTAFNA=+A  ARFLE

WEBEARE (CBTRF H) -
BREIE
FEBRADAR-TEAFHA=F

BAREBEMNKRERBHRERNIREER

as follows: LERFEERNT
The Group The Company
rEH AT
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FET FET
Contracted but not provided for: & 5T 1B R I2 B &4
— capital expenditure in respect of — WEWE - BE X
acquisition of property, BBz ERRAE
plant and equipment 5,149 — — _

The acquisition of the property, plant and equipment was
cancelled by the vendor subsequently. Further details are set out
in note 33 to the financial statements.
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30.

100

ZERFOA=THLFE

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
Share option scheme adopted in 2001

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 4th July, 2001 (the “2001 Scheme”)
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees for a period of 10 years ending 3rd July,
2011. However, on 29th August, 2002, the 2001 Scheme was
terminated by shareholders of the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed on that date.

Under the 2001 Scheme, the Directors may grant options to
eligible employees, including executive directors of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
could be granted under the 2001 Scheme was 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted to any one person which, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of shares already issued and
issuable to him/her under the 2001 Scheme exceeding 25% of
the shares of the Company from the time being issued and
issuable under the 2001 Scheme.

Options granted had to be taken up within a period of 21 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.
Options granted are exercisable for a period of not more than
10 years after the date of the options are granted. The exercise
price was not less than the highest of (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grants; (ii) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, or (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

All share options granted by the Company under the 2001
Scheme were cancelled during the year ended 30th April, 2005.
There were no shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the 2001 Scheme as
at 30th April, 2005 and 30th April, 2006.
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30. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

(Cont’'d)
Share option scheme adopted in 2002

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 29th August, 2002 (the 2002
Scheme”). Under the 2002 Scheme, the Directors may grant
options to (i) any eligible employee (means any employee,
whether full time or part time employee, including any executive
directors and non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any invested entity; (ii) any supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any invested entity; (iii)
any customer of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any
person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
invested entity; and (v) any shareholder or any member of the
Group or any invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group to any invested entity
(collectively known as the "Participants”), to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The purpose of 2002 Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to the Participants thereunder for
their contributions to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.
The period of the 2002 Scheme shall not be more than ten years
from the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme.
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30. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

102

(Cont’'d)
Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (Cont’d)

As at 30th April, 2006, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2002 Scheme was 101,900,000 (2005: 69,500,000)
representing 29.88% (2005: 20.38%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2002
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of the approval of the 2002
Scheme, unless approved by the Company’s shareholders. In
addition, the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
under the 2002 Scheme and 2001 Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors of the Company, or any
of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company's share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An
option period to be determined by the directors is at their
absolute discretion shall not be more than 10 years after the
date of the grant of the share option (“Option Period”). Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2002
Scheme at any time during the Option Period after the option
has been granted. The exercise price should not be less than (i)
the highest of the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (ii)
the closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grants,
which must be a trading day; or (iii) the average of the closing
prices of the Company's shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
Annual Report 2006 4 &

30.

LRG XNz EEHE (&)

“EECERM2BERESTE (E)
RZZEEXFUNA=1+H  RBE=
iﬁ%JE&ﬁ&rﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬂ%mﬁﬁﬁx
REFT Y R BR 1 B & 101,900,0008%
“ZEE R 69,500,0000%) ¢ MHARA
AIRZABREITRMN 229.88% (ZFZ
£$ 20.38%) - RIE-—ZEE - F 58
B BT R 2 1D B S
#@z@ZJS AIRHLE—Z T —F5tE

BEHEETRNZ10% @ HEAKRRFR
RHEDERIBRSIN  BEON - FEBITERRE

TEE-EHBEER -ET-EFERY
M AR TE B BEAR M T AT REBXTT AU AR
AIRDEE LR - NEBBA QR TE
BEITRRMEHI30% ° TA{E R A £HAMT
o]+ =& 7B HAR R m] REJEIR 2 BB IR A AT
FBRZEHEE - NMEBBAQRMEM
BEEBITRNZ1%  AARARTE
REREB I IERTEZTRF S I MHE
AR O ERER - MBERERTS R
%@ﬁﬁmﬂﬁ%KZM% R
5,000,000/ 7L A £+ BIZBBE A A F]
AR AL o

REzBREANKLARE -+ N\H
NEZW  BRERGEINIET -
BREMREHESSBYNITET
HEBBHSE NS BN &R L BREB R

Bt ER(BRESE] - BRE
A] R E B 12 B0 B P Ak B ] PO B i 42 AR
:%%:EEJr;UZ%?MﬂEE c TEE

BEROAR Tﬁxf’ﬁﬁfﬁ (i)~ B AR
T RELBEM(LERERR) 2™
B R>(NEXRLAMREEZEA
ARABENZFHETE=82&%
e



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R B &

For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

30. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

(Cont’'d)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options held by the Participants and movements in such

holdings during the year:

Under 2001 Scheme

Exercise price

30. RO XN zEEHE (&)

TRRELRERE 2 AR ABBIEH
BRESBBRARER N2 B

RE-ZZ—F58
Cancelled during

the year ended
30th April, 2005

Outstanding at
30th April, 2005

Outstanding at
1st May, 2004

R-ZZZNF RBE-ZZTHF R=-ZZHEF

AHA—H mA=+H MA=+H

TEE e K 17 fE L FEREH CESRY
HK$
BT

0.250 445,000 (445,000) —

0.219 2,650,000 (2,650,000) —

0.227 5,495,000 (5,495,000) —

0.243 6,000,000 (6,000,000) —

14,590,000 (14,590,000) —

Under 2002 Scheme RE-_ZSZ_F58
Granted during  Lapsed during Granted during  Lapsed during
Outstanding at the year ended the year ended Outstanding at the year ended the year ended Outstanding at

Exercise price 1st May, 2004 30th April, 2005 30th April, 2005 30th April, 2005 30th April, 2006 30th April, 2006 30th April, 2006
REaz REz naz REaz

R-ZZNF it 2 5k “EREF  R-REIE ut 3 A% “BERE RIRERAE

IA-H mA=+A mAE=1+H mAE=1+H mE=1+AH mE=+H mA=+A

k@ HATE LFEEARLE  LEERXA HATE LEEARYE LEERXY HARTE
HKS
BT

0.245 20,000,000 — - 20,000,000 — — 20,000,000

0.070 20,000,000 — — 20,000,000 — — 20,000,000

0.0338 30,000,000 — (16,500,000)* 13,500,000 — — 13,500,000

0.0450 — 16,000,000 - 16,000,000 — — 16,000,000

0.0360 — — - - 30,000,000 — 30,000,000

0.0250 — — - — 2,600,000 (200,000)* 2,400,000

70,000,000 16,000,000 (16,500,000) 69,500,000 32,600,000 (200,000) 101,900,000

* The share options lapsed upon the resignation of the employees from the ~ * E 75 B R B B i K 2 B AR E -
Group.
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30. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 30. UM FzEERME (&)
(Cont’'d)
Details of the share options held by the directors included in the RSB ESHECBEREFBOT
above tables are as follows:

Granted Cancelled Granted
during the during the during the
Outstanding at year ended year ended  Outstanding at year ended  Outstanding at

1st May, 2004  30th April, 2005 30th April, 2005 30th April, 2005 30th April, 2006 30th April, 2006

i REZE REZE
R-ZEmE ZEZHE “EERE  RIBEIE ZEERE RIBERE

LA-H MAE=1H MA=1H ME=1H MAE=1H MA=1H

WAATE LEEARLE LEERTH HATHE  LFEARY HARTE
Under 2001 Scheme ~ RE-ZZ—Fi 2 5,995,000 - (5,995,000) - - -
Under 2002 Scheme ~ RIE-ZTT %32 23,000,000 8,000,000 - 31,000,000 15,200,000 46,200,000

28,995,000 8,000,000 (5,995,000) 31,000,000 15,200,000 46,200,000

Note: Mr. Ip Yu Chak, who was a non-executive director of the Company, Met ELRBEER ST RF+A=+—HE

FEARAEHITES - 1Bf)§z#h%§ﬂa7a$
DR ZHNEPEER o Et - DRIRBE=ZF
—FEAR T _FEARTELES
423,000,000 Bk iE (ERBE =2
HEMA =+ AL FE+E88) %28,000,000
MERETEBFERLERA -

resigned on 31st October, 2005 but continued to be employed by the
Company as an external consultant. The share options granted to Mr. Ip Yu
Chak under 2001 Scheme of 3,000,000 (which was cancelled during the
year ended 30th April, 2005) and under 2002 Scheme of 28,000,000 have
accordingly been excluded from the above table.

FrERBBREZFBNOT

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

Under 2001 Scheme

Exercise price Date of grant

RE-—ZZT-F5E

Exercise period

THEE ®EBH THEEME
HK$
BT
0.250 27th July, 2001 27th July, 2001 to 26th July, 2011
—E2E-F+A=-++H —EE—F+A+tEtRAEZT—F+A=+H
0.237 1st February, 2002 1st February, 2002 to 31st January 2012
2T -F-A—H —EE-F-A—RAEZFE—=-%—A=+—H
0.219 19th March, 2002 19th March, 2002 to 18th March 2012
—ET=-F=A+1A —EE-F=-At+hBEZZTE—=-F=F+/\H
0.227 27th March, 2002 27th March, 2002 to 26th March, 2012
—EE-F=HA=++tH —EE-F=-A+t+tREZT—=-F=-A=+7H
0.243 26th July, 2002 26th July, 2002 to 25th July, 2012

—EE_F+A=+RH

TEECEL AT AREE-E-—FtA-+HA

/] 04 B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
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BE-TEAFNAZHALER

30. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

(Cont’'d)
Under 2002 Scheme

Exercise price Date of grant

30. RO XN zEEHE (&)

RE-ZSZ_F5T8

Exercise period

THEE ®EBH TR

HK$

BT

0.245 29th August, 2002 29th August, 2002 to 28th August, 2012
—EE2FNAZ=TNIAB —EFE_FNAZtNBREZE——-—FNA=-+/\H

0.070 11th August, 2003 11th August, 2003 to 10th August, 2013
—E2E=FNA+—H —EE=FNA+—BE=ZE—=FNA+H

0.0388 8th October, 2003 8th October, 2003 to 7th October, 2013
2T =F+ANH —EE=Ft+ANHEZE—=F1+ALtH

0.045 25th August, 2004 25th August, 2004 to 24th August, 2014
—EENFENAZTHA —EENENA-+RBE-_Z—NFENA -+MOH

0.036 29th August, 2005 29th August, 2005 to 28th August, 2015
—ZEERFNAZTNA —EERFNA-t+AHE-ZE—HEFENA=-+NH

0.025 9th December, 2005 9th December, 2005 to 8th December, 2015

—EERF+=-ANE

—EERF+_ANBE_Z-—RF+-ANB

The options are vested on the date of grant.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in equity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle the options.

There are 406,000 ordinary shares, which represent 0.12% of
the issued share capital, available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme at the date of this annual report.

As HKFRS 2 does not require full retrospective application of the
new rules as described in note 3.14, not all of Group’s share
options have been recognised in accordance with the current
accounting policy of the Group on share options. The share
options granted during and prior to the year ended 30th April,
2005 have not been accounted for under HKFRS 2 because the
options had already vested before 1st May, 2005. Therefore,
they were not subject to the requirements of HKFRS 2.

BRENELAHRE -

PR A AR S 2 1B B W B A5 AR AR X
15 o 2N SR (BB J8 1) [20 8 o S A R Ao
ZAERKIEEERM °

RAFRBE - RIFERRET & ] {3
T2 EBRE B £406,0000% @ 158 %
TAR0.12% °

HREBMBERELAE2RLESRE
MRAAZEEEYRA (FFAn K=
3.14) - Bt - IWIRARKE AT A R
Vg AEEEEBEE 2 RITER R
BR - -AREHE-_TTRFMNA=T
BEEESZAREZBREER -F
THFERA—HAGE  WEEERE
W AR IR E BB S s R E 25 A
B At ZFBEBREHRAETEEN
BmEEFE 2R 2T
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BE

SEERFNACTALEEE

30. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

31.

106

(Cont’'d)

The fair values of options granted under the 2002 Scheme on
29th August, 2005 and 9th December, 2005, measured at the
date of grant, were approximately HK$148,000 and HK$15,000
respectively. The following significant assumptions were used to
derive the fair values, using the Black-Scholes-Merton Option
Pricing Model:

Date of grant [Egael =i

Volatility AL
Expected option period (in years)
Risk free rate (adjusted regarding £ & [ F =

the expected life) (L FEsr E oA )

Expected dividend yield TEERAR B &

In total, HK$163,000 of employee compensation expense has
been included in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 30th April, 2006 (2005: Nil) with a corresponding credit
in equity. No liabilities were recognised as they were all equity-
settled share-based payment transactions.

On 8th May, 2006, Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Mr. Ip Yu Chak
exercised their share option to subscribe for an aggregate of
30,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each at exercise price of
HK$0.036.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The total cost charged to consolidated income statement of
HK$270,000 (2005:HK$394,000) represents contributions
payable to the retirement benefits schemes by the Group in
respect of the current accounting period. As at 30th April, 2006,
contributions of approximately HK$57,000 (2005:HK$42,000)
due in respect of the reporting period had not been paid over to
the retirement benefits schemes.

B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
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30. RO XN zEEHE (&)

FERHE 2 BT F B CAFED)

31.

RZZFEZERFNAZTNBEZ=ZZEZR
F+ZANERBE-_EZT=_FrEIME
BERERBRHBPZAFES RN A
148,000/ 7T & 15,0008 7C » A%
—aFRHT A EER A G E AT ERAT
TZEEBZOT :

29th August, 9th December,

2005 2005
—ETRF —EERF
NA=-+hBE +=—AAhH
85.11% 116.46%

0.5 0.5

3.419% 3.69%

Nil Nil

i i3

A H#163,0008 L (ZETHF  T)
EERERIKEIABE_ZZTF
MA=ZTRHIEFEZHGEWER - #a
NIMBESIAREZ 2% - BRZERX
i’]ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁiﬁzﬁﬂ’\’*%mﬁ HA
mERETAAE

R-ZZEEXFEFRANR BEERAER
BELBREETHE LB LMT@TE!P
1% 0.0367% 7T 33 i & £ 30,000,0000% &
BEE0OTVE T Z I »

B8R 58

R ER A U 5 7 R 1Bk 2 485K ZX 270,000
BT (ZEZ R E - 394,0000 7T) HEAR
= B g AN w1 B R IR AR AR B AT B RS
ZHEK - RZZTEXFUA=1+H 5
AR BB AT R 2 549 57,0008 7T (=
TEFHF 42,0008 L) T ARZ TR
REFF S -
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the following
related party transactions during the year:

BEALXRS

BMBHRERATREZIR S REHI
AEERNERETTINEEALRS ¢

Name of related party Nature of transactions 2006 2005
BEATERE REMHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Innovation Advertising Service income received by the Group (Note a) — 11
Limited
ABESARAA REBE S WRBWA (Fita)
BMI Appraisals Service income received by the Group (Note a) 725 812
A0 FE B T AEBEDWRBEA (K ita)
Service fee paid by the Group (Note a) — 33
AEBEENREER (Mita)
BMI Surveyors Service income received by the Group (Note a) 303 4
FB R E BB & AP 1T REBEE KRB WA (Hfita)
Lo and Kwong CPA Co. Service income received by the Group (Note a) — 2

Ltd (Note b)
E R g TR EFT AEE B WREUA (K ita)
BARAR (K iEb)

In addition to the above, during the year, the Company disposed
of its 30% equity interest in its associate, Innovation Advertising
Limited, to Mr. Lo Wah Kei, the close relative of Mr. Lo Wah Wai
(the chairman and executive director of the Company) for a
consideration of HK$15,000, resulting in a gain on disposal of
approximately HK$29,000.

Notes:

a. The price of transactions is determined by the directors with reference to
market prices for similar transactions with unrelated parties.

b. Mr. Lo Wah Wai, a director of the Company, has beneficial interests in this
company.

B Litsh - RABREAHEREBER
AAERESAERATEEE (ARAX
FERATESEERZERZRE) - K
BB /15,0008 HERREA/L
29,0008 7T °

Wit -

a. RGERDHMEF2RERBEEALHET
BURHzTERKREE -

b, AATEFEBRELAARATLEN
s -
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
BE-TEAFNAZHALER

33. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

With reference to the announcement and circular published by
the Company dated 11th July, 2006, the acquisition of a
property in Shenzhen for RMB5,403,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,246,000) was cancelled in June 2006 as the
vendor failed to repay the bank mortgage in order to release the
property to the Company.

On 10th July, 2006, the Group entered into property
subscription agreement with a new vendor in relation to the
acquisition of another property for an aggregate consideration
of RMB5,532,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,371,000).

/] O8 B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
Annual Report 2006 4 &

3. "KEHREHE

BEARGR-_ZEZNFLA+—BT
B RAMmEBE  BEUARE
5,403,000t (1855 7 495,246,000/ 7T)
WHERII—TBYHETEE - ARNE A KREE
BERITIRBERURBBRZDET AR
B BEREER -_ZTANENAR
H e

R-_ZEEXFLA+H AEFEEHE
FREE S — XTI W EREWZ -
BREAARES,532,0007T (FEE R L)
5,371,000/ L) °
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BE-ZTAFNASTALFE

34,

SUBSIDIARIES

34.

Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th
April, 2006 are as follows:

Nominal value

B B 2 7]

ARBR-_ZERFOA=THZEE

MEBARZFBLT :

of issued Proportion of nominal
Place of ordinary capital/ value of issued capital
incorporation/ Kind of registered held by the Company
Name of company registration legal entity capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BRTEER ERREE
SR EARRE BRA/Zf SRTRAEELA
RAER T B E BFXEE E# M IEER
(note)
(M 2E)

BMI Consultants Limited Hong Kong Limited company HK$6 — 100%  Business, accounting
and corporate
development
advisory services

BEXBERARLA BB BRAA 678 T % g RAA
ERERRG
BM Intelligence Limited British Virgin Limited company US$20,000 100% —  Investment holding
Islands
RERUEE BERAF 20,000 7T REEK

BMI Corporate Services Hong Kong Limited company HK$100 — 100%  Company secretarial
Limited services

RBERWERR BA BRAR 100/ 7T AEMWERS
BRRA

IBC Corporate Services Hong Kong Limited company HK$1 — 100%  Company secretarial
Limited services

BRBEFCEWERS &R BRRF BT RAWE RS
BRERA

BMI Funds Management Hong Kong Limited company ~ HK$1,000,000 — 100%  Funds management
Limited services
BERESER B BRAR 1,000,000 7T EeBER%
BRERA

BMI Wealth Management Hong Kong Limited company HK$120,000 — 72%  Brokerage services
Limited

RBERHMEER N BARAR 120,0007% 7T TR
BRAA
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BE-TEAFNAZHALER

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 34. B~ 7] ()

Place of

Nominal value
of issued

ordinary capital/

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital

incorporation/ Kind of registered  held by the Company
Name of company registration legal entity capital ~ Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
ERTEER ERAEE
EMRL, EAER kx/&f ERORAEELA
RAER A 3t B i BXHE E# B TEXK
(note)
(Fit5E)
BMI Professional Translation ~ Hong Kong Limited company HK$100 — 100%  Translation services
Services Limited
BEREXME BR BRAT 1007 7T HERS
BRERA
BMI Technologies Limited Hong Kong Limited company HK$100 — 100%  Information
technology
consulting services
BERME Bk BRAR 1007% 7 BB R R
BRERA
BMI Strategic Marketing Hong Kong Limited company HK$1 — 100%  Marketing services
Limited
BEERTHSRBHERE BB BRDA BT 35 1 B AR %
BRAA
BMI Professional Services British Virgin Limited company US$1 — 100%  Company secretarial
Limited Islands services
RERUEE ARAT (E REANWERE
BM Union Communications ~ Hong Kong Limited company HK$1,000 — 80%  Public relations
Limited services
ABRBaERERAR B BRAR 1,000/ 7T N e
BZR Capital Limited Hong Kong Limited company ~ HK$1,500,000 — 60%  Corporate advisory
services
BERREBRAF B BRAT 1,500,000 7T AL
BMI Consultant (Shenzhen)  the PRC Wholly HK$1,000,0000 — 100%  Business, accounting
Limited owned foreign and corporate
investment development
enterprises advisory services
ARESER ORI o E EHELE 1,000,00007% 7T B &5tk
BRERA AR ERER
R 7%
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BE-TEAFNAZHALER

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 34.

Nominal value

B 8~ &) ()

of issued Proportion of nominal
Place of ordinary capital/ value of issued capital
incorporation/ Kind of registered  held by the Company
Name of company registration legal entity capital ~ Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
ERTEER ERAEE
EMRL, EAER kx/&f ERORAEELA
RAER A 3t B i BXHE E# B TEXK
(note)
(Fit5E)
BMI Corporate Advisory the PRC Wholly US$350,000 — 100%  Business, accounting
(Shanghai) Limited owned foreign and corporate
investment development
enterprises advisory services
ARRERBBEN e 2HERE 350,000% 7T % g8tk
(EB)BERAR NEER
B R %
Note: e -

All subsidiaries carry out their operations principally in their respective place of
incorporation or registration.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

FrAM B AR EERES B 7MKL it B
EITERR -

FRIHEERAHAEERAFEXELFIR
FEINFRAKASEEEFEIZSOZA
SEMBEAR - EERA  JHEMHEBEARZ
FBEHLABRITE °

E

5L 45 MY I8 A R R R A (R) A R AR SROAS 4 T B
BHZEBES -

3
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For the year ended 30th April, 2006
HE_ZTZXEFWNA=THILFE

35. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result
from both its operating and investing activities. The Group does
not have written risk management policies and guidelines.
However, the board of directors meets periodically to analyse
and formulate strategies to manage the Group’s exposure to
market risk, including changes in interest rates and currency
exchange rates. Generally, the Group introduces conservative
strategies on its risk management. The Group's exposure to
market risk is kept to a minimum. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, deposits, prepayments and other receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets, amounts due from an
associate and a minority shareholder of a subsidiary. The Group’s
financial liabilities include accrued charges and other payable,
amount due to an associate and finance lease liabilities.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong
and most of the transactions are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and RMB. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group
had neither engaged in any derivative activities nor
committed to any financial instruments to hedge its
balance sheet exposures. In view of the stability of the
exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and RMB, the
directors consider the Group’s foreign exchange risk to be
minimal.

(b) Interest rate risk
The Group does not have any significant exposure to

interest rate risk, as the Group currently has no material
interest bearing financial liabilities.

/] /] 2 B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT
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ARERETON AL ERE - AE
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SE M T AETEH M -

rEBMBEERERENASEE
HE - BREE - EZE  BAZREAEEE
o EWRIE - AIHHEMBTEE - AR
FE s Bt 2 2 R e Y B ) D BUBCR M

ZHE o KEIZQMKEE’T%FE?%
Ak E N RRIE - EAEE R EIIA
LEBEHEERE -
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HE=

ZERFOA=THLFE

35. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’'d)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

The Group’s bank balances are mainly deposits with banks
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables in the
balance sheet which represent the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial
assets. No other financial assets carry a significant
exposure to credit risk. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group’s trade and other
receivables are actively monitored to avoid significant
concentrations of credit risk. The Group only treats with
customers after careful assessment of their credit
worthiness and financial background.

Fair value
The fair value of the Group’s current financial assets and

liabilities are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short term maturity.

B M Intelligence International Limited 2 ESREBEEER AT

35. Al EEREEBE (B

(c)

(d)

EE R

AEBZRIERIEFEATE
KB 2 8R1T o

BERBREZRERBEREREM
FEW AR TR $ AN R E A X K R 8]
MBEEARZIEARR - Hitb
MBEEEREEREEAR - K
SEYEEAEEETER - K
SETYERARKEERHAM
R BRIB A 2 EREE &P A
R REBEZEEMWFEEP 2B
B R BARRES B PIETR
5 o

AYE

RAKERSMBEERAEBLZ
A SAEREH  RAKE
ZRBVBEERBEZRAFE
VEARMEYESERNESR -
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Financial Summary

MREE
RESULTS E
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FE T
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E31)) (E3)) (&%) (E31))

Revenue W & 19,197 12,520 12,202 20,571 42,427
Cost of services provided B Rt 2 IR A AR (5,577) (7,904)  (10,144)  (14,649) (28,770)
Gross profit E7 13,620 4,616 2,058 5,922 13,657
Other operating income Hagg A 577 151 25 292 687
Gain on disposal of partial i & BT B A | EB

interest in a subsidiary % 2 W s — — — 3 —
Release of negative goodwill of @l B 2 7]

a subsidiary RS — — 25 — —
Administrative and operating TR REE

expenses 3 (5,949) (10,741) (9,260) (10,107) (13,881)
Loss on disposal of short term HERBRKEE 2

investment E5 18 — — — (216) =
Operating profit/(loss) reEwER (BE) 8,248 (5,974) (7,152) (4,106) 463
Finance charge on obligations MEREREEEZ

under finance leases A& B AR (31) (16) (2) 9) (10)
Gain on disposal of investment  HEREE AR ZHE

in an associate 2 WEs — — — — 29
Share of results of associates JEMREE = AR EE 688 570 456 626 1,295
Release of negative goodwill of % Bl B & 1 7]

an associate EEEE — 351 — — —
Profit/(loss) before income tax BATE AR

(B5#K) 8,905 (5,069) (6,698) (3,489) 1,777

Income tax expense FriS #i5 & (752) (3) 15 — =
Profit/(loss) for the year NEE BT (EB) 8,153 (5,072) (6,683) (3,489) 1,777
Attributable to: RE :
Equity holders of the Company AR AKZEARIEFAF A 8,153 (5,072) (6,678) (3,478) 1,826
Minority interests DE RS — — (5) (11) (49)
Profit/(loss) for the year AFEEMN (BE) 8,153 (5072)  (6,683) (3,489 1,777
Total assets BEE 26,605 28,803 22,301 18,452 28,782
Total liabilities HwEE (3,424) (2,814) (2,778) (2,394)  (10,751)
Shareholders’ funds ERE S 23,181 25,989 19,523 16,058 18,031
Note: HiaE -

The financial summary does not form part of the financial statements.
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